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Letter of Transmittal

To

Hon’ble Shareholders

Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission,
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms,
Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC.

Subject: Annual Report-2024.

Dear Sir (s),

We are pleased to enclose herewith a copy of Annual Report together with the
Audited Financial Statements comprising Statement of Financial Position,
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30t June, 2024 along with notes
thereon of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited for your kind information and records.

Thanking You,
Sincerely yours,

e

Shuva Ray
Company Secretary-Acting

N.B: The Annual Report 2024 is also available in the Company's website at: www.alhajtextilemills.com



Alhaj Textile Mills Limited

66, Dilkusha C/A, Chand Mansion (4™ floor), Dhaka-1000.

NOTICE OF THE 42rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 42™ Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited
will be held on Saturday, 7 February 2026 at 11.00 am through Hybrid platform (physical & Digital)
at Dhaka Club, Sinha Lounge. The AGM will be conducted through transaction of the following
business agenda:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Directors’ and Auditors’ Report and the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024.

2. To declare Dividend for the year ended June 30, 2024.

3. To elect /re-elect Directors as per Company’s Articles of Association.
4. To approve the incorporation of Shareholder Director.

5. To appoint Statutory Auditors and to fix their remuneration.

6. To appoint Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors and to fix their remuneration.

By order of the Board
Scan to get %
Link of AGM
Place: Dhaka Shuva Ray
Dated: 16™ January 2026 Company Secretary-Acting

NOTES:

Members whose names appeared in the Members’/Depository Register on Record Date i.e.
15™ January 2026 will be eligible to join/participate and vote in the Annual General Meeting
through the Digital Platform and to receive the dividend.

A Member entitled to join/participate and vote in the Annual General Meeting may appoint a
proxy in his stead. A scanned copy of the duly stamped proxy form must be sent to the email
“info@alhajtextilemills.com” not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

Pursuant to the BSEC Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated
June 20, 2018, soft copy (PDF format) of the Annual Report 2023-2024 will be sent to the
Members’ respective email addresses as available with us. The Annual Report 2023-2024
will also be available on the Company’s website at www.alhajtextilemills.com

The link for joining the Hybrid Platform (audio-visual meeting) is
https://alhajtex42nd.virtualagmbd.com which will also be sent to the respective Members’
email addresses and SMS to their mobile numbers as available with us in due course of time.
The Members need to put their 16-digit Beneficial Owner (BO) ID number as proof of their
identity for log-in to the system.

This link https://alhajtex42nd.virtualagmbd.com will be opened 48 hours before the
commencement of the AGM for questions/comments and vote electronically by the members.




CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Board of Directors

Chairman-Acting
Mr. Md. Bakhtiar Rahman

Managing Director & CEO-Acting

Mr. Muhammad Mizanur Rahman

Directors

Mr. Md. Talha

Mr. Md. Abdullah Bokhari

Mr. Md. Saidul Islam

Ms. Khodeza Khatoon

Mr. Md. Harunoor Rashid

Mr. Md. Joynul Abedin Chowdhury

Company Secretary-Acting
Mr. Shuva Ray

Chief Financial Officer-Acting
Mr. Md. Jalal Uddin

Head of Internal Audit and Compliance-Acting
Mr. Md. Khalilur Rahman

Insurance
Bangladesh General Insurance Co. Ltd.
Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka.

E-mail: info@alhajtextilemills.com
Website: www.alhajtextilemills.com

Audit Committee (as on 28-11-2025 reconstructed at

Boa

Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr

rd of Directors Meeting)

. Md. Monirul Islam, FCA - Chairman
. Md. Saidul Islam -Member
. Md. Harunoor Rashid -Member
. Md. Faizul Matin -Member

Nomination & Remuneration Committee (as on
28-11-2025 reconstructed at Board of Directors Meeting)

Mr

Ex
FA

. Md. Faizul Matin - Chairman
. Khodeza Khatoon — Member
. Md. Bakhtiar Rahman — Member

. Md. Joynul Abedin Chowdhury - Member
. Monirul Islam, FCA - Member

ternal Auditors
MES & R

Chartered Accountants

Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors
Haruner Rashid & Associates
Chartered Secretaries & Management Consultants

Principal Bankers

Prime Bank Limited, Ishwardi Branch, Ishwardi, Pabna.
Prime Bank Limited, I.B.B. Dilkusha, Dhaka.
Janata Bank Limited, Local Office, Dhaka.

IFIC Bank Ltd., Stock Exchange Branch, Dhaka.

NR

B Bank Ltd, Dilkusha, Dhaka.

Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd, Local office, Dhaka.

Al-

Arafah Bank PLC, Green Road Sub Branch, Dhaka.

Factory
I.K. Road, Ishwardi, Pabna.

Re
66,

gistered Office
Dilkusha C/A, Chand Mansion (4" Floor),

Dhaka-1000.
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MR. MD. BAKHTIAR RAHMAN
Chairman-Acting

Profile

Mohammed Bakhtiar Rahman, Chairman of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited, was born
in the year 1953. He started his business in plastic product manufacturing when
he was a college student in 1974. After completing his Bachelor degree in
commerce from Dhaka University, he started a textile business as an importer
and exporter of all kinds of textile products, dyes, and chemicals in 1977. He has
transformed the plastic product manufacturing business into Unique Plastics
Industries Limited in 1985 as founder Managing Director. He was also one of the
Sponsor Director of Drug International Limited.

He has become a member of Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. in 1980, as Stock Broker
firm Bakhtiar & Co. and transformed into Alhaj Securities & Stocks Ltd. in 2006
as Track Holder of DSE Limited and has become the Director and founder
Chairman of the Company.

He joined as the Director of Unique Insecticides Limited, Alhaj Jute Mills
Limited, and Mahmuda Hai Chemi Limited engaged in textile chemical products
manufacturing. He is also a member of the Advisory Committee of Khawja
Muzammel Haque (R) Foundation and was a founder member of Hai Mahmuda
Charitable Society.

He has traveled to many countries like USA, Canada, most of the European
countries, and the Asian sub-continent.

He has nearly Four decades of experience in the business sector thus he has
achieved noteworthy experience in various business sectors as Textile, Jute,
Dyes and Chemicals, Stock Brokerage, Import/ Export, Purchase, and sales.




MR. MUHAMMAD MIZANUR RAHMAN
Managing Director & CEO-Acting

Profile

Muhammad Mizanur Rahman is the Managing Director & CEO of the
Company. He obtained his BBA from University of Wisconsin, Oshkosh, USA.
After completion his graduation, he started his professional career in
business world in Bangladesh & abroad. He is a devoted leader of
Management of the company to expedite the development of Alhaj Textile
Mills Limited.

Being a versatile business personality with more than 33 years of
experiences, he has established different industries. He is the Chairman
of Alhaj Jute Mills Limited and also take part in Bangladesh Recruiting
Industries. He is a valued member of Dhaka Club Ltd. and Uttara Club Ltd.
Mr. Rahman is very much fond of Table Tennis and lawn Tennis.

Under his strong leadership and entrepreneurial spirit, Alhaj Textile can
become one of the leading spinning mills in the Country.




MR. MD. TALHA
Director

Profile

Mr. Md. Talha, aged about 81, is the Director of the Company. After Completion
of his Bachelor of Commerce Degree in 1961, he started his professional life as
General Manager of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. Later in the year 1985 he co-
opted as a Director (Administration) of the said Company. In the year 1992 he
became the Managing Director of the Company. He also joined as a Director
(Finance and Administration) of Alhaj Jute Mills Limited in the year 2001 and
became Chairman of the Company since 2016. During 37 years of his directorship
in Alhaj Textile Mills Limited he played different roles in administration,
production, finance etc. He has special interest in sharing knowledge with
reputed scholars in the textile areas.

Mr. Talha was the former Managing Director & CEO of Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd. and
the Senior Vice Chairman of Bangladesh Textile Mills Association & Bangladesh
Jute Mills association. He attended various seminars and symposiums on textile
field in home and abroad. He is a life Member of Anjuman-E-Mafidul Islam,
Gulshan Azad Moshjid, Red Cross & Red Crescent Society and also Human Rights
Commission. He visited many countries of the world like USA, UK, Germany,
Italy, France, Japan, China, Singapore, Hong Kong, Thailand & India.

He is widely experienced in Management to effectively run the Company both in
textile and jute sector. He gathered knowledge in line of production, marketing
and management system.
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S8 MR. MD. ABDULLAH BOKHARI
& Director

Profile

Mr. Md. Abdullah Bokhari, aged about 74, is the Director of the Company.
After Graduation, he started his professional life with business. He joined
as a Director procurement of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited in the year 1982.
Later in the year 1996, he became Chairman of the Company. During 40
years of his directorship in Alhaj Textile Mills Limited, he played different
roles like Procurement (Foreign & Local), Production & Operation, Sales,
Planning & Development, Finance etc.

Mr. Bokhari was the former Chairman of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited for
two consecutive terms. He is also the Managing Director of AB & Co. Ltd.,
TREC#043, Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited. He has travelled many
countries of the world and visited many industries in connection with
business. He has vast experience and knowledge in Management
techniques both in Textile and Jute Industries and also knowledge about
overall production process of Spinning.
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@ | MR. MD. SAIDUL ISLAM
f i 1 J Director

Profile

Mr. Md. Saidul Islam, aged about 70, is the Director of the Company. After
Graduation, he started his professional career with business. In the year
1996, he joined as a Director (planning) of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. Mr.
Islam visited many countries of the world in connection with business.

Mr. Islam was the Chairman of the Purchase & Sales Committee of Alhaj
Textile Mills Limited. He was also a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company. He has vast
knowledge in management techniques both in textile and jute mills.




MS. KHODEZA KHATOON
Director

Profile

Ms. Khodeza Khatoon, is a Director of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. She is the
wife of late Md. Shuhrawardi who was the Chairman of Alhaj Jute Mills
Limited and the Director of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. She has been a key

stakeholder behind the success of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited over the past
decades.

Ms. Khodeza is also the Director of Alhaj Jute Mills Limited. She is an
experienced entrepreneur with along track record. Under her strong
leadership and entrepreneurial spirit, Alhaj Textile has become one of the
leading textile mills in the Country.
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MR. MD. HARUNOOR RASHID
Director

Mr. Md. Harunoor Rashid is prominent business personnel in Bangladesh.
With his visionary leadership and extensive business knowledge, Alhaj
Textile Mills Limited drives ahead to provide superior quality products and

services. Mr. Rashid completed his graduation from University of Dhaka,
Bangladesh. Over the past three decades, he has gained expertise and
experienced in Textile, Spinning, Plastic and Jute Industry in Bangladesh,
with successful investments in diversified industries.

Mr. Rashid is also the Managing Director of Alhaj Jute Mills Limited and the
Nominee Director of City General Insurance Co. Limited. He is moreover
the Chairman of GM Golda Hatchery Ltd. and the Managing Partner of M.
Rahman & Co.

Mr. Rashid visited many industries in home and abroad in connection of
business and gathered knowledge in management techniques to
effectively run the Company. He also gathered knowledge in modern
method & technology both Textile & Jute Industry.
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MR. MD. JOYNUL ABEDIN CHOWDHURY
Director

Profile

On 18th February 2024, Mr. Md. Joynul Abedin Chowdhury joined Alhaj
Textile Mills Limited as Director. He is bringing his strategic insight and
commitment of quality and sustainability to one of the region's most
respected textile company. A strong advocate for innovation, he continues
to drive green production and advanced manufacturing practices across
both organizations.

Md. Joynul Abedin Chowdhury is a visionary leader with extensive
expertise in the textile and garments industry. He is also a Director of
Clifton Group. As Director of Clifton Group, he is leading the company to
achieve an export milestone of over USD 130 million, expanding its
portfolio to include knitting, dyeing, printing, manufacturing and garments
accessories. He is doing business with USA, Canada, Europe & Japanese
companies over three decades.
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Md. Faizul Matin
Independent Director

Profile

Md. Faizul Matin is a senior management professional with more than four
decades of diversified experience in corporate administration, governance,
compliance, and operational management across the tea, industrial, and
manufacturing sectors. He has served in senior leadership roles with several
reputed national and multinational organizations, including James Finlay PLC,
A.K. Khan & Co. Ltd., City Group, T.K. Group of Industries, and J.K. Group of
Industries.

He possesses extensive expertise in corporate affairs, human resources,
administration, regulatory compliance, and strategic oversight. In addition to his
corporate career, Mr. Matin has contributed significantly to the development of
the tea sector in Bangladesh through consultancy and advisory roles with
Bangladesh Tea Association and Solidaridad Network Asia.

Mr. Matin is the Founder & Director of Tetulia Tea Company Limited and
currently serves as a Independent Director of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited, where
he provides strategic guidance and oversight to support sustainable business
growth and strong corporate governance.

He holds Honours and Master’s degrees in English from the University of
Chittagong. He has also gained international exposure through professional visits
to several countries including the United Kingdom, United States, Canada, and
various Asian countries.




Md. Monirul Islam
Independent Director

Profile

An experienced Chartered Accountant with more than 20 years of experience in
Corporate & Investment Banking in Asia and Europe. A Partner of Islam Aftab Kamrul &
Co., Chartered Accountants, qualified from KPMG, Dhaka, Bangladesh, in 2007, where
Mr. Islam worked from June 2004 to September 2009. During his tenure with KPM
Bangladesh, Mr. Islam handled several leading local and multinational companies, such
as HSBC Bangladesh, Citibank, Banglalink Telecom, Agrani Bank, Prime Bank, the City
Bank, UCB Bank (portfolio audit), Asian Paints, Renata Limited, Danida, Crown Agent,
Islamic Relief, BRAC, ASA, Proshika, PKSF, World Bank special audit, and many other
audit and advisory services at KPMG.

Mr. Islam led the business segments of Alternative Investments (Venture Capital,
Private Equity, and M&A) at UCB Alternative Investments, a division of United
Commercial Bank, from 2021 to 2024. Prior to UCB, he was the Managing Director of
BDV AMC of BD Ventures Limited. Mr. Islam also led Investment Banking, Structured
Finance, Private Equity, and Merger & Acquisition as the Director and Head of
Corporate and Institutional Banking of BRAC EPL Investments Limited, a 100% owned
subsidiary of BRAC Bank Limited. BRAC Bank is one of the leading commercial banks in
Bangladesh with a market capitalization of USD 1.13 billion (October 2025). Mr. Islam
attained a wide range of experiences in debt and equity capital markets with particular
focus on local and cross-border loan syndication, project finance, private equity,
mergers & acquisitions worth more than BDT 20 billion across various sectors, including
power and energy, finance, mobile financial services, textile, pharmaceuticals,
chemical, etc. He was actively engaged as the advisor to the Dhaka Stock Exchange in
preparing the demutualization scheme and business plan, conducting valuation to
successfully complete the fastest demutualization in the world. Under his supervision,
the Structured Finance team in BRAC EPL Investments Limited raised debt worth up to
USD 120 million for the largest infrastructure project, the Dhaka Elevated Expressway.
Mr. Islam successfully completed many M&A, VC, and Private Equity deals during his
tenure with UCB Alternative Investments.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Shuva Ray is the Company Secretary-Acting of
Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. He completed his Post
Graduate Diploma in Human Resource Manage-
ment (PGDHRM) from the Bangladesh Institute of
Management Studies (BiMS) & also successfully
completing Masters of Business Administration
(MBA) from the University of Dhaka. He is also
persueing his Chartered Secretaries (CS) Course
MR. SHUVA RAY on Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangla-
Company Secretary-Acting desh. He has participated in various conferences
& trainings.

Mr. Md. Jalal Uddin is the Chief Financial Officer
(Acting) of the Company. He is a part qualified
Chartered Accountant (Certificate level) from the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh
(ICAB) & M. Com in Accounting from the National
University. He has obtained Income Tax Practitio-

ner (ITP) Certificate. He has 14 years’ experience
in the field of Accounts, Finance, Taxation & Issue
Management. He is in the Company since 2011.

MR. MD. JALAL UDDIN
Chief Financial Officer-Acting

18



Mr. Khalilur Rahman is the Head of Internal Audit
and Compliance-Acting of Alhaj Textile Mills
Limited. He has completed Masters of Business
Studies in Accounting from Titumir College under
the National University. Mr. Rahman Also Com-
pleted PGD course on ‘““Customs, VAT and Income
Tax Management” from DCCI Business Institute
(DBI). He enriched his knowledge by attending
various seminar and Certificate Course like VAT
and Tax from ICMAB. Mr. Khalilur has experienced
more than 16 years in the field of Costing, MIS,
Accounts, Finance, Taxation, Vat, Internal audit,
MR. KHALILUR RAHMA issue management. He is working in the Company
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance-Acting since 2022. He has participated in various
conferences & trainings.

Mr. Md. Akhtaruzzaman, aged about 51, Deputy
General Manager (Maintenance & Production) of
the Company. He has completed his Diploma in
Engineering (Mech.) from Bangladesh Technical
Education Board, Dhaka in the year 1992. He
completed BSC in Textile Engineers & Technology
(Major Yarn) in the year 2006 from (Distance)
Tuition provide Edward University of USA.

Mr. Akhtaruzzaman started his service career
from 1993 with Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. During
his long service period, he acquired vast
knowledge over Technical, Production Technol- MR. MD. AKHTARUZZAMAN

Deputy General Manager

ogy and Electronic works also. He started his , ,
(Maintenance & Production)

carrier as a Management Executive in the year
2010. For exploring his knowledge, he attended
many training programs on making yarn in abroad.
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MESSAGE

FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholders,
Ladies and Gentlemen

Assalamu'alaikum,

Welcome to you all at the 42nd Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. It also
gives me immense pleasure to place before you the
Annual Report along with the Audited Financial
Statements, Auditors' Report and Directors' Report
thereon for the year ended on 30th June, 2024.

During the reporting period, the Company navigated a highly challenging operating
environment marked by intense market volatility, sector-wide pressures in the spinning
industry, and lingering economic headwinds. These conditions tested our resilience and
strategic resolve. Even then, the Company continued its operations successfully, maintaining
business continuity while strengthening its operational stability and positioning itself for

sustainable growth.

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank all concerned - our valued customers for
their confidence in our products, the employees for their tireless efforts, the suppliers for
their quality cotton, s pare parts, and electrical goods, honorable shareholders for their
continuous support and interest for the welfare of the Company, the Regulatory Bodies
including Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), the Dhaka Stock
Exchanges (DSE), the Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL), the Bankers, and
the Insurance Companies for their cooperation and support to our Company. We expect that
the same support from all stakeholders would continue in the coming days.

With best wishes

—Eodwan,

Md. Bakhtiar Rahman
Chairman-Acting
Board of Directors
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MESSAGE

FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO

Dear Shareholders,

Assalamu'alaikum,

Itis my greatest pleasure that I welcome you on behalf
of the Board of Directors to the 42nd Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of your Company and present before
you the Annual Report for the year 2023-24 contain-

ing Directors' Report and Audited Financial State-
ments for your perusal. I hope you all have received

and studied the Annual Report.

I would like to inform you all of the factors such as policy support, energy & transport costs,
natural disasters, social violence and international market situation which can be nationally,
internationally and diplomatically handled. You can depend on our resilience to make the

costs competitive for our benefit and investments being highly profitable.

I would like to take this opportunity on behalf of the Board of Directors and express my most
sincere admiration to all our valued customers for their confidence in our products. I would
like to thanks the management tea mand all employees of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited for
their effort & dedication. A special thanks also to our shareholders, customers, business
partner and other stakeholders for their continued support in Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. I
earnestly hope our combined efforts will result in better future ahead of the company and
benefits for all its stakeholders.

With best wishes for all of you

Ao

Muhammad Mizanur Rahman
Managing Director & CEO-Acting
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BANGLADESH ASSOCIATION OF PUBLICLY LISTED COMPANIES

Ref. No: €M-2024/133 BAPLC Date of issue :February 15, 2024

-
Renewed Certificate

This is to certify that

ALHA] TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

is an Ordinary Member of Bangladesh Association of Publicly Listed Companies
and is entitled to all the rights and privileges appertaining thereto.

This certificate remains current until 31° December 2024.

@.  am—"
N <" Secretary General

STVA Form 0007
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BANGLADESH TEXTILE MILLS ASSOCIATION (BTMA)
Al (BB Is« fEe anfHar=e ( ana)
8 Unique Trade Centre (Level 8), 8, Panthapath, Karwan Bazar, Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh, Phone : 48116358,

222248778, 58156619, E-mail : btmasg@gmail.com, btma2@yahoo.com, Website: www.btmadhaka.com

MEMBERSHIP CERTIFICATE

Membership No : 001-0016-0109 el 18-2-2024
Al-haj Textile Mills Ltd.
Ne are pleased lo admit MY )
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Report of the Audit Committee Annexure1
FOR THE YEAR 2023-2024

Alhaj Textile Mills Limited reconstructed its Audit Committee as a sub committee of the Board of
Directors on 28-11-2025. The committee reformed after getting approval from BSEC Ref. No.
53.02.0000.000.122.0002.23.562, October 8, 2025 of two independent directors. As per CGC the
Independent Director is the chairman of the committee.

The Audit Committee consists of the following persons:

Mr. Md. Monirul Islam, FCA Independent Director | Chairman
Mr. Md. Harunoor Rashid Director Member
Mr. Md. Saidul Islam Director Member
Mr. Md. Faizul Matin Independent Director | Member

The Company Secretary functions as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

The Scope of the Audit Committee was defined as under:
a) Oversee the financial reporting process.
b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles.

¢) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately resourced, including
approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance plan and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance
Report.

d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption.

f) Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.

g) Review along with the management, the quarterly and half-yearly financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval.

h) Review the adequacy of the internal audit function.

i) Review the Management's discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report Review
statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management.

j) Review Management Representation Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by
statutory auditors.

k) Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise deployed,
and time required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of the external auditors.

I) Review and consider the report of internal auditors and statutory auditors' observations on internal
control.
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m) Any other requirement assigned by the Board of Directors.

Activities carried out during the year:
During the financial year ended 30th June 2024 the previous committee held 01 (one) meeting.

Proceedings of the Audit Committee Meetings were reported timely and regularly to the Board
of Directors. During the year, the Committee performed amongst others, the following key
functions:

1. The present Audit Committee checked and reviewed the mintues and meetings related documents
of previous Audit Committee. Based on their findings the present Audit Committee reports to the
Board of Directors.

2. The Committee reviewed the integrity of the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements
and recommended to the Board for consideration.

3. The Committee had overseen, reviewed and approved the procedure and task of the internal audit,
financial report preparation and the external audit reports.

4. The Committee reviewed the performance and appointment of external auditors.
5. The Committee reviewed related party transactions.

6. The Committee reviewed the Management Representation Letters or Letter of Internal Control
weakness issued by statutory auditors.

7. The Committee found adequate arrangement to present a true and fair view of the activities and
the financial status of the Company and didn't find any material deviation, discrepancies or any
adverse finding/observation in the area of reporting.

REPORTING BY AUDIT COMMITTEE TO THE BOARD:

The Committee regularly reports on its work to the Board. The report includes a summary of matters
addressed in the meeting by the members present and the measures undertaken by the committee.

A

Mr. Md. Monirul Islam, FCA
Chairman
Audit Committee

35



NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT Annexure-2
For the Year 2023-2024

In compliance with the Commission's Notification on Corporate Governance Code No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 3, 2018, the Board of Directors of Alhaj
Textile Mills Limited in its Board Meeting held on October 28, 2025 re-constituted the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") after getting approval of BSEC Ref. No.
53.02.0000.000.122.0002.23.562, October 8, 2025 of two independent directors. As per CGC the
Independent Director is the chairman of the committee.

Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is now composed of the following members:

Mr. Md. Faizul Matin Independent Director Chairman
Mr. Md. Bakhtiar Rahman Director Member
Ms. Khodeza Khatoon Director Member
Mr. Md. Joynul Abedin Chowdhury Director Member
Mr. Md. Monirul Islam, FCA Independent Director Member

Members of the Senior Management team will also attend the meetings by invitation of the Chairman
only as and when necessary. The Company Secretary functions as the Secretary of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.

Meeting

During the year ended 30" June 2024 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held 01 meeting
Proceedings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting was reported to the Board of
Directors.

Role of the NRC

(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to the shareholders;
(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommendation
to the Board:

(1) formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and. recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, top level executive, considering the following:

(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully.

(b) the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

(c) remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

(11) devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into consideration age, gender,
experience, ethnicity, educational background and nationality;

(i1) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed
in top level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and
recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;
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(iv)  formulating the criteria for evaluation of the performance of independent directors
and the Board;
(v) identifying the company's needs for employees at different levels and determine their
selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria, and
(vi)  developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company's human resources
and training policies;
(¢) The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria
and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its annual report.

Take note on Director/Managing Director & CEO

The Nomination & Remuneration committee (NRC) of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited took note on
appointment of Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman for being Managing Director & CEO-Acting of the
Company on Board of Directors Meeting held on 18-02-2024.

The Committee also take note on appointment of Mr. Joynul Abedin Chowdhury as a Shareholder
Director of the Company on Board of Directors Meeting held on 18-02-2024.

Proposal for re-election of Directors

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) proposed Mrs. Khodeza Khatoon and Mr. Md.
Saidul Islam, Directors of the Company for retirement by rotation and for re-election (being eligible)
by the shareholders in this upcoming 42" Annual General Meeting.

Take note on appointment of Independent Directors

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) take note on appointment of Mr. Faizul Matin,
Independent Director and Mr. Md. Monirul Islam as the Independent Directors of the Company as
per BSEC approval letter No. 53.02.0000.000. 122.0002.23.562, October 8, 2025.

Take note for Top Management (CS, CFO, HIAC) appointment

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited take note on
appointment of Mr. Shuva Ray as Company Secretary — Acting, Mr. Md. Jalal Uddin as Chief
Financial Officer — Acting and Mr. Md. Kholilur Rahman as Head of Internal Audit & Compliance
— Acting of the company.

Acknowledgment

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expresses its sincere thanks to the Chairman and
Members of the Board and Management for their support in carrying out the duties and
responsibilities

On behalf of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Qgans”
Mr. Md. Faizul Matin

Chairman
Nomination & Remuneration Committee
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Management Assertion Certificate
Declaration by Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer

The Board of Directors

Alhaj Textile Mills Limited

66, Dilkusha Commercial Area (4™ Floor)
Dhaka-1000

Subject:

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5) (xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 Dated 3 June 2018 under section 2CC of the
Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statement of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited for the year ended on 30™ June
2024 have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and
any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent
and reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been
reasonably and fairly presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system
of internal control and maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that
the established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainly related 10 events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

In thi rtify that: -

(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30™ June'2024 and
that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

¢ these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statement that might be misleading;
e these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company's affairs
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.
(ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of
conduct for the company's Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

Md. Jalal Uddin Muhammad Mizanur Rahman
Chief Financial Officer-Acting Managing Director & CEO-Acting




Haruner Rashid & Associate

Chartered Secretaries & Management Consu

t

-

Report to the Shareholders of
Alhaj Textile Mills Limited
on
Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code
by Alhaj Textile Mills Limited for the year ended 30"™ June, 2024. This
Code relates to the Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80
dated June 03, 2018 and its latest amendments issued under section 2CC of
the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of
the Company. Our examination was limited to the procedures and
implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance
to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of
the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of
relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of
Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are
not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we
have required, and after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that,
in our opinion:

(a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance Code as stipulated in the above-mentioned Corporate
Governance Code issued by the Commission;

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant
Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this Code;

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required
under the Companies Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant
laws; and

(d) The Governance of the Company is satisfactory.

Haruner Rashid & Associates
Chartered Secretaries

Can X
Place : Dhaka A.K.M. Haruner Rashid, LL.B, FCS
Dated: January 04, 2026 CEO & Consultant

15271, Tejkunipara, Bijoy Sarani Link Road, Tejgaon, Dhaka-1215
Mobile : +8801711-105322, +8801730-728605 (Mominur)
E-mail: hrashbd@gmail.com, hrashid associates@gmail com
www.hracsfirm.com
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Status of compliance for the period ended 30t June 2025 of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited with the

[Alhaj Textile Mills Limited]

[As per condition No. I(5) (xxvii)]

Status of compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (CGC)

conditions imposed by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) vide

Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 and it’s latest

amendments issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969

(Report under Condition No. 9)

Compliance Status

Condition Title appr(::rtia\/t:enct::ﬁmn) Remarks
No. Complied Not (ifany)
Complied
1 Board of Directors
I(1) The total number of members of a company's Board of Directors v The Board of Directors
R of Alhaj Textile Mills
(hereinafter referred to as "Board") shall not be less than 5 (five) and Limited is comprised of
more then 20 (twenty). 10 (ten) Directors
including 02 (two)
Independent Directors.
1(2) Independent Directors
1(2)(a) At least 2 (two) directors or one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of v There are 02 (two)
directors in the company’s Board, whichever is higher, shall be Infjepe"de"t Directors
independent directors; any fraction shall be considered to the next in the board of the
. . company, Both are
integer or whole number for calculating number of male
independentdirector(s):
Provided that the Board shall appoint at least I(one) female
independent director in the Board of Directors of the company;
1(2)(b) Without contravention of any provision of any other laws, for the
purpose of this clause, an “independent director” means a director —
1(2)(b)(i) Who either does not hold any share in the Company or holds less v As declared by the
than one percent (%) shares of the total paid-up shares of the Independent
Company. Directors.
1(2)(b)(ii) Who is not a sponsor of the Company or is not connected with the
Company’s any sponsor or director or nominated director or \/ Do
shareholder of the Company or any of its associates, sister concerns,
subsidiaries and parents or holding entities who holds one percent
(1%) or more shares of the total paid-up shares of the Company on
the basis of family relationship and his or her family members also
shall not hold above mentioned shares in the Company.
Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, btother, sister,
son-in-law and daughter-in-law shall be considered as family members
1(2)(b)(iii) Who has not been an executive of the Company in immediately y Do
preceding 2 (two) financial years.
1(2)(b)(iv) Who does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or \ Do
otherwise, with the Company or its subsidiary or associated
Companies.
1(2)(b)(v) Who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement \ Do

Certificate) holder, director or officer of any stock exchange.
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12)(b)(vi)

Who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director
or officer of any member or TREC holder of Stock Exchange or an
intermediary of the capital market.

1(2)(b)(vii)

Who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an
executive during the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned
Company’s statutory audit firm or audit firm engaged in internal audit
services or audit firm conducting special audit or professional
certifying compliance of this Code.

Do

1 (2)(b)(viii)

Who is not independent director in more than 5 (five) listed
companies.

12)(b)(>)

who has not been reported as a defaulter in the latest Credit
Information Bureau (CIB) report of Bangladesh Bank for nonpayment
of any loan or advance or obligation to a bank or a financial institution.

12)(b) ()

Who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral
turpitude.

Do

1(2)(c)

The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the Board and
approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM):

Provided that the Board shall appoint the independent director,
subject to prior consent of the Commission, after due consideration
of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) of the company.

In Practice.

12)(d)

The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more
than 90 (ninety) days.

12)(e)

The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period
of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for | (one) tenure only.

Provided that a former independent director may be consider for
reappointment for another tenure after a time gap of one tenure, i.e,,
three years from his or her completion of consecutive two tenures
[i.e. six years].

13)

Qualification of Independent Director :

13)@)

Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual with
integrity who is able to ensure compliance with financial laws,
regularity requirements and corporate laws and can make meaningful
contribution to the business.

The Qualification and
background of the ID’s
are commensurate to
the requirements of
the position and are
stated in the Directors
profile.

13)(b)

Independent Director shall have following qualifications :

13)(b)(i)

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted
company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk.100.00 million or any
listed company or a member of any national or international chamber
of commerce or registered business association; or

Not applicable

1 3)(b)(ii)

Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive not lower than
Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director or Deputy Managing
Director or Chief Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts
or Company Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and Compliance or
Head of Legal Service or a candidate with equivalent position of an
unlisted Company having minimum paid-up-capital of Tk. 100.00
million or of a listed Company; or

1 3)(b)(iii)

Former or existing official of government or statutory or
autonomous or regulatory body in the position not below 5t Grade

Not applicable
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of the national pay scale, who has at least educational background of
bachelor degree in economics or commerce or business or Law:

Provided that in case of appointment of existing official as
independent director, it requires clearance from the organization
where he or she is in service; or

1(3)(b)(iv) University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or - Not applicable
Commerce or Business Studies or Law; or
13)(b)(v) Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the High v
Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered
Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered
Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified Accountant or Certified
Public Accountant or Chartered Management Accountant or
Chartered Secretary or equivalent qualification.

1(3)(c) The independent director shall have at least |0 (ten) years of v
experiences in any field mentioned in clause (b).

1(3)(d) In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may be - None
relaxed subject to prior approval of the Commission.

1(4) Duality of Chairpersons of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer:

1(4)(a) The positions of the Chairpersons of the Board and the Managing \ The Chairman of the
Director (MD) and /or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the gﬁiﬁ::::;ﬂiﬂlgy
Company shall be filled by different individuals. different person.

1(4)(b) The Managing Director (MD) and / or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) \/ The Managing
of a listed Company shall not hold the same position in another listed h Director does not

old the same position
Company. of any other listed
company

1(4)(c) The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the non- \/ The Chairman is elected
executive directors of the Company. from amongst the non-

executive directors

1(4)(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of \/
the Chairperson and the Managing Director and / or Chief
Executive Officer.

1(4)(e) In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining - Chairperson of the Board
members may elect one of themselves from non-executive directors Meeting was elected from
as Chairperson for that particular Board’s meeting; the reason of the non-executive
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the directors
minutes.

1(5) The Directors’ Report to Shareholders:

1(5)(i) An industry outlook and possible future developments in the \ Included in the
industry. Director’s Report

1(5)(ii) The segment-wise or product-wise performance. \ Do

1 (5)(iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat \ Do
to sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any.

1(5)(iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods Sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net \ Do
Profit Margin, where applicable.

1(5)(v) A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and their y Do

implications (gain or loss).
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1(G)(vi)

A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a
statement showing amount, nature of related party, nature of
transactions and basis of transactions of all related party transactions.

1 (5)(vii)

A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues,
rights issues and / or any other instruments.

Do

1 (5)(vii)

An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the Company
goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO),
Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc.

No such event

15)(x)

An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between
Quarterly Financial performances and Annual Financial Statements.

Included in the

Director’s Report

1))

A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including
independent directors.

Do

1(5)(xi)

A statement that the financial statements prepared by the
management of the issuer Company present fairly its state of affairs,
the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

1 (5)(xii)

A statement that proper books of account of the issuer Company
have been maintained.

Do

1 (5)(xiii)

A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and that
the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment.

I (5)(xiv)

A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS) or
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in
Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the financial
statements and any departure there from has been adequately
disclosed.

1(G)(xv)

A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and
has been effectively implemented and monitored.

1 (5)(xvi)

A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from
abusive actions by, or in the interest of, controlling shareholders
acting either directly or indirectly and have effective means of
redress.

Do

1 (5) (xvii)

A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, if the issuer
Company is not considered to be a going concern, the fact along with
reasons there of shall be disclosed.

Do

1 (5)(viii)

An explanation that significant deviations from the last year’s
operating results of the issuer Company shall be highlighted and the
reasons thereof shall be explained.

Do

1 (5)(xix)

A statement where key operating and financial data of at least
preceding 5 (five) years shall be summarized.

1(5)()

An explanation on the reasons if the issuer Company has not
declared dividend (cash or stock) for the year.

5% cash and 35% stock
dividend declared.
(stock dividend
declared subject to
approval of the BSEC.)
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1 (5)(xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend - No bonus share or stock
has been or shall be declared as interim dividend;. dividend declared as
interim dividend
1(5)(xxii) The total number of Board meeting held during the year and \ Disclosed in the
attendance by each director. Director’s
Report
1(5)(xxiii) A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of shares (along with name-

wise details where stated below) held by:

I (5)(xxiii)(a) | Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related \ Included in the
parties (name-wise details). Director’s report

1(5)(xxiii)(b) | Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief \ Do
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance and their
spouses and minor children (name-wise details).

1(5)(xxiii)(c) | Executives; and [Executives means top salaries person other than v Do
Directors, CEO, CS, CFO & HIAC]

1(5)(xxiii)(d) | Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in - Not applicable
the Company (name-wise details).

1(5)(xxiv) In case of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure on the following information
to the shareholders:

I(5)(xxiv)(@) | A brief resume of the director. v

1(5)(xxiv)(b) | Nature of his her expertise in specific functional areas. v

1(5)(xxiv)(c) | Names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship J
and the membership of committees of the Board.

1(5)(xxv) A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of the
Company’s position and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial statements,
among others, focusing on:

1(5)(xxv)(a) | Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial \/
statements.

1(5)(xxv)(b) | Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly - Not applicable
describing the effect on financial performance or results and financial
position as well as cash flows in absolute figure for such changes.

1(5)(xxv)(c) | Comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial \
performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows for
current financial year with immediate preceding five years explaining
reasons thereof.

I(5)(xxv)(d) | Compare such financial performance or results and financial position \
as well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario.

1(5)(xxv)(e) | Briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the Country \
and the globe.

1(5)(xxv)(f) Risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, \
explaining such risk and concerns mitigation plan of the Company.

1(5)(xxv)(g) Future plan or projection or forecast for Company’s operation, v

performance and financial position, with justification thereof, i.e.,
actual position shall be explained to the shareholders in the next
AGM.
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1(5)(xxvi)

Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board
as required under condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per
Annexure-A.

1 (5) (xxvii)

The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions
of this Code as required under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as
per Annexure-B and Annexure-C.

1(5) (xxviii)

The Directors’ report to the shareholders does not require to
include the business strategy or technical specification related to
products or services, which have business confidentiality.

1(6)

Meetings of the Board of Directors :

The Company shall conduct its Board Meetings and record the
minutes of the meetings as well as keep required books and records
in line with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent
with any condition of this Code.

1(7)

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief

Executive

Officer:

1(7)@)

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) at condition No. 6, for the Chairperson of the Board, other
Board members and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

\/

1(7)(b)

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on
the website of the Company including, among others, prudent
conduct and behavior; confidentially; conflict of interest, compliance
with laws, rules and regulations; prohibition of insider trading;
relationship with environment, employees, customers and suppliers;
and independencey.

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company :

2(a)

Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the holding
Company shall be made applicable to the composition of the Board
of the subsidiary Company.

Not applicable,

2(b)

At least | (one) independent director on the Board of the holding
Company shall be a director on the Board of the subsidiary Company.

Not applicable

2(c)

The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary Company shall
be placed for review at the following Board meeting of the holding
Company.

Not applicable

2(d)

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding Company
shall state that they have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary
Company also.

Not applicable

2(e)

The Audit Committee of the holding Company shall also review the
financial statements, in particular the investments made by the
subsidiary Company.

Not applicable

Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS).

3(1)

Appointment

3(NG@)

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive
Officer (CEO), a Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer
(CFO), and a Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC).

\/
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3(h(b)

The position of the managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive
Officer (CEO), Company Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer
(CFO), and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) shall be
filied by different individuals.

They are different
individuals

3(N(9)

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed Company shall not
hold any executive position in any other Company at the same time.

Provided that CFO or CS of any listed company may be appointed
for the same position in any other listed or non-listed company under
the same group for reduction of cost or for technical expertise, with
prior approval of the Commission.

Provided further that the remuneration and perquisites of the said
CFO or CS shall be shared by appointing companies proportionately.

3(N(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and
duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS.

3(H(e)

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from
their position without approval of the Board as well as immediate
dissemination to the Commission and stock exchange(s).

No such event in the

reporting year

3(2)

Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings:

3(2)

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall attend
the meetings of the Board: Provided that the CS, CFO and/or the
HIAC shall not attend such part of a meeting of the Board which
involves consideration of an agenda item relating to their personal
matters.

3(3)

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer

CFO):

33)@)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have
reviewed financial statements for the year and that to the best of
their knowledge and belief.

The MD & CFO duly
certified the Board as
given in the Annual
Report

33)@()

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or
omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading.

3(3)(@) i)

These statements together present a true and fair view of the
Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards and applicable laws.

33)(b)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the
best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation
of the code of conduct for the Company’s Board or its members.

3G3)()

The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in
the Annual Report.

Board of Directors’ Committee:

4(9)

For ensuring good governance in the Company, The Board shall have
at least following sub-committees: Audit Committee; and

4(ii)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Audit Committee:
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5(1)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5(N@)

The Company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of
the Board.

5(h(b)

The Audit committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the
financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within the
business.

5(N(e)

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the duties
of the Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing.

5(2)

Constitution of the Audit Committee (AC)

5(2)@)

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three)
members.

The Audit Committee
comprised of 4 (four)

members.

5(2)(b)

The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who shall
be non-executive directors of the Company excepting Chairpersons
of the Board and shall include at least | (one) independent director.

5(2)(9)

All members of the audit committee should be “financially literate”
and at least | (one) member shall have accounting or related financial
management background and 10 (ten) years of such experience.

5(2)(d)

When the term of service of any Committee member expires or
there is any circumstance causing any Committee member to be
unable to hold office before expiration of the term of service, thus
making the number of the Committee members to be lower than the
prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the Board shall appoint the
new Committee member to fill up the vacancy immediately or not
later than 60 (sixty) days from the date of vacancy in the Committee
to ensure continuity of the performance of work of the Audit
Committee.

No such event in the

reporting year

52)(e)

The Company Secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee.

5

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute
without at least | (one) independent director.

5(3)

Chairperson of Audit Committee:

5(3)(@)

The Board shall select | (one) member of the Audit Committee to
be Chairperson of the Audit Committee, who shall be an independent
director.

Mr. Md. Monirul Islam,
FCA, Independent
Director, is the
Chairperson of the
Audit Committee.

5(3)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the
remaining members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for
that particular meeting, in that case there shall be no problem of
constituting a quorum as required under condition No. 5(4)(b) and
the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly
recorded in the minutes.

No such event in the

reporting year

53)(©)

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the
Annual General Meeting (AGM).

Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the Audit Committee, any
other member from the Audit Committee shall be selected to be
present in the annual general meeting (AGM) and reason for absence
of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall be recorded in the
minutes of the AGM.
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5(4) Meeting of the Audit Committee:
5(4)(a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a The Audit Committee
financial year. conducted One
meeting during the
Provided that any emergency meeting in addition to regular meeting reporting year.
may be convenced at the request of any one of the members of the
committee.
5(4)(b) The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be
constituted in presence of either two members or two-third of the
members of the Audit Committee, whichever is higher, where
presence of an independent director is a must.
5(5) Role of Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee shall:-
5(5)(a) Oversee the financial reporting process.
5(5)(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles.
5(5)(c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is
adequately resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit and
Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance
Report.
5(5)(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
5(5)(e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of
the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval or adoption;
5(5)(f) Review along with the management, the annual financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval.
5(5)(g) Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly
financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.
5(5)(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function.
5(5)(i) Review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing
in the Annual Report.
5(5)(j) Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the
management.
5(5)(k) Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness
issued by the statutory auditors.
5(5)(I) Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and
magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time required for effective
audit and evaluate the performance of external auditors.
5(5)(m) Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Internal Public

Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer
have been utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant offer
document or prospectus approved by the Commission.

Provided that the management shall disclose to the Audit Committee
about the uses or applications of the proceeds by major category

Not applicable




(capital expenditure, sales and marketing expenses, working capital
etc.), on a quarterly basis, as a part of their quarterly declaration of
financial results.

Provided further that on an annual basis, the company shall prepare
a statement of the proceeds utilized for the purposes other than
those stated in the offer document or prospectus for publication in
the Annual Report along with the comments of the Audit Committee.

5(6) Reporting of the Audit Commiittee:
5(6) (a) Reporting to the Board of Directors
5(6)(2)(i) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board. v
5(6)(a)(ii) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the following findings, if any:

5(6)(a)(i)(2)

Report on conflicts of interests.

Not applicable

5(6)(a)(i)(b)

Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect
identified in the internal audit and compliance process or in the
financial statements.

Not applicable

5(6)(a)(ii)(c)

Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including
securities related laws, rules and regulations.

Not applicable

5(6)(a)(ii)(d)

Any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall
be disclosed to the Board immediately.

Not applicable

5(6)(b)

Reporting to the Authorities:

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board about anything
which has material impact on the financial condition and results of
operation and has discussed with the Board and the management that
any rectification is necessary and if the Audit Committee finds that
such rectification has been unreasonable ignored, the Audit
Committee shall report such finding to the Commission, upon
reporting of such matters to the Board for three times or completion
of a period 6 (six) months from the date of first reporting to the
Board, whichever is earlier.

Not applicable

5.(7)

Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors:

Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including
any report made to the Board under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above
during the year, shall be signed by the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee and disclosed in the annual report of the issuer Company.

Audit Committee
report duly given in

the Annual Report

6

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):

6(1)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

6(1)()

The Company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) as a sub-committee of the Board.

6(1)(b)

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination
criteria or policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
experiences and independence of directors and top level executive
as well as a policy for formal process of considering remuneration of
directors, top level executive.

6(1)(c)

The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth
in writing covering the areas stated at the condition No. 6(5) (b).

6(2)

Constitution of the NRC

6(2)()

The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including
an independent director.

The NRC comprised
of 5 (five) members,
including 2 (two)
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Independent

Directors.

6(2)(b) At least 02 (two) members of the Committee shall be non-executive

directors.
6(2)(c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the

Board.
6(2)(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member

of the Committee.
6(2)(e) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any In Practice

member of the Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, the
board shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of
occurring such vacancy in the Committee.

6(2)(f)

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any
external expert and/ or member(s) of staff to the Committee as
advisor who shall be non-voting member, if the Chairperson feels that
advice or suggestion from such external expert and / or member(s)
of staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee.

No such event in the

reporting year

6(2)(g)

The Company Secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee.

6(2)(h)

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without
attendance of at least an independent director.

6(2)()

No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly,
any remuneration for any advisory or consultancy role or otherwise,
other than Director’s fees or honorarium from the Company.

6(3)

Chairperson of the NRC:

6(3)(a)

The Board shall select | (one) member of the NRC to be
Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be an independent
director.

63)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining
members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that
particular meeting, the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson
shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

No such event in the

reporting year

6(3)(c)

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting
(AGM) to answer the queries of the shareholders.

Provieded that in absence of Chairperson of the NRC, any other
member from the NRC shall be selected to be present in the annual
general meeting (AGM) for answering the shareholder,s queries and
reason for absence of the Chairperson of the NRC shall be recorded
in the minutes of the AGM.

6(4)

Meeting of the NRC:

6(4)()

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year.

One meeting held

6(4)(b)

The Chairperson of the NRC may conven any emergency meeting
upon request by any member of the NRC.

No such event in the

reporting year

6(4)(c)

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in
presence of either two members or two third of the members of the
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Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an independent
director is must as required under condition No. 6(2) (h).

6(4)(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded v
in the minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed in the next
meeting of the NRC.

6(5) Role of the NRC:

6(5)(2) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the v
Board and to the shareholders.

6(5)(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommendation to
the Board:

6(5)(b)(i) Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive v
attributes and independence of a director and recommend a policy
to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level
executive, considering the following.

6(5)(b)()(2) | The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and v
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable directors to run the
Company successfully.

6(5)(b)(i)(b) | The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets v
appropriate performance benchmarks.

6(5)(b)(i)(c) Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance v
between fixed and incentive pay reflection short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company
and its goal.

6(5)(b)(ii) Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, \
gender, experience, ethnicity, educational background and
nationality.

6(5)(b)(iii) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who \
may be appointed in top level executive position in accordance with
the criteria laid down, and recommended their appointment and
removal to the Board.

6(5)(b)(iv) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of v
independent directors and the Board.

6(5)(b)(v) Identification the Company’s needs for employees at different levels v
and determine their selection, transfer or replacement and
promotion criteria.

6(5)(b)(vi) Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the Company’s \
human resource and training policies.

6(5)(c) The Company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration police v
and the evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a
glance in its annual report.

7 External or Statutory Auditors:
(1) The issuer Company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the following services of the
Company, namely.
7(1)(i) Appraisal or valuation service or fairness opinions. \
7(1)(ii) Financial information systems design and implementation. \

/)

/
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7(1)(iii) Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or
financial statements.

7(1)(iv) Broker-dealer services.

7(1)(v) Actuarial services.

7(1)(vi) Internal audit services or special audit services.

7(1)(vii) Any services that the Audit Committee determines.

7(1)(viii) Audit or certification services on compliance of corporate
governance as required under condition No. 9(I).

7(1)(ix) Any other service that creates conflicts of interest.

7(2) No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any
share of the Company they audit at least during the tenure of their
audit assignment of that Company; his or her family members also
shall not hold any shares in the said Company.

Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, btother, sister,
son-in-law and daughter-in-law shall be considered as family
members.

7(3) Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present
in the Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual General Meeting or
Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the queries of the
shareholders.

8 Maintaining a website by the Company:

8(1) The Company shall have an official website linked with the website of www.alhajtextilemills.co
the stock exchange. m

8(2) The Company shall keep the website functional from the date of
listing.

8(3) The Company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its
website as required under the listing regulations of the concerned
stock exchange(s).

9 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance:

9(1) The Company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing Professional The certification is
Accountant or Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and given in the Annual
Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary) other than its Report
statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis regarding compliance
of conditions of Corporate Governance Code of the Commission
and shall such certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

9(2) The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of Appointed at AGM
this Corporate Governance Code shall be appointed by the
shareholders in the annual general meeting.

93) The directors of the Company shall state, in accordance with the Given in the Annual

Annexure-C attached, in the directors’ report whether the
Company has complied with these conditions or not.

Report
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS E-mail: haque.fouzia@gmail.com, hoquezhc@yahoo.com, fmrashid@yahoo.com
shafi.selim1960@gmail.com, dishaarif4@gmail.com, wadudca@gmail.com

Independent Auditors' Report
To the shareholders of
Alhaj Textile Mills Lid.
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited (the Company), which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June, 2024, and Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give true and fair view, in all material
respects, of the financial position of the company as at 30 June 2024, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), The Companies Act 1994, The Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and
other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in
accordance with the ‘International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

I = PrimeGlobal [ i
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/ FAMES & R

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Risk

Our response to the risk

Revenue Recognition

At the year end the reported total revenue
of Tk. 30,94,42,422/-The company generates
revenue from sale of goods to local market.

We identified revenue recognition as key
audit matter as it is one of the key
performance indicators of the Company,
which give rise to an inherent risk of the
existence and the accuracy of the revenue.

We have tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls focusing on the
following

» Obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design and operating
effectiveness of controls designed to
ensure that revenue is recognized in the
appropriate accounting period.

Segregation of duties in invoice creation
and modification and timing of revenue
recognition.

Assessing the appropriateness of the
Company's accounting policies for
revenue recognition and compliance of
those policies with applicable
accounting standards.

Y

Obtain supporting documents for sale
fransaction to determine whether
revenue was recognized in the cumrent
period.

Comparing a sample of revenue
transactions recognized during the year
with the sale invoices and other relevant
underlying documentation.

Critically assessing manual journals
posted to revenue to identify unusual or
imegular items, and finally assessed the
appropriateness and presentation of
disclosures against relevant accounting

standards.

Note no 25.00 to the statement of comprehensive income.

Valuation of inventory

The inventory of Tk. 21,44,50,852/-as at 30
June, 2024 held in warehouses and factory.

Inventories are camied at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. As a result, the
Directors apply judgment in determining the
appropriate values for slow-moving or
obsolete items.

We challenged the appropriateness of
management's assumptions applied in
calculating the value of the inventory provision
by:

» Evaluating the design and
implementation of key inventory controls

operating across the factory and
warehouse.
» Attending inventory counts and

reconciling the count results to the
inventory listing to test the completeness
of data. Our procedures included testing
roll-back reconciliations, performing cut-
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off testing around year-end, verifying
inventory movements and assessing
valuation and related disclosures.

» Reviewing the historical accuracy of
inventory provisioning and the level of
inventory write-offs during the year; and
challenging the completeness of
inventory provisions through assessing
actual and forecast sales of inventory
lines to assess whether provisions for slow
moving/obsolete stock are valid and
complete.

Ay

Comparing the net redlizable value
obtained through a detailed review of
sales subsequent to the year-end, to the
cost price of a sample of inventories and
comparison to the associated provision
to assess whether inventory provisions are
complete.

Note no. 5.00 to the financial statements
Fixed deposit with Bank (Investment in FDR)

FDR is the most significant item in the | We additionally caried out the following
financial position. The company has | substantive testing for this item:
reported total fixed deposit of Tk.

39,20,93,366/- at 30 June 2024. » Obtained Fixed Deposit Schedule and
checked physical existence of Fixed
Deposit.

Obtained Fixed Deposit bank statement
and verified with Fixed Deposit schedule
- and checked calculation of Fixed
Deposit interest and income recognized.

‘7

Y

Encashment of Fixed Deposits were
checked with Bank statement and
confirmation were taken.

Finally assessed the appropriateness and
presentation of disclosures against relevant
accounting Standards, IAS and other applicable
rules and regulations and regulatory guidelines

Note no 8.00 to the financial statements
Interest Income
Total interest income of Tk. 426,012,062/- as at | We carried out the following substantive testing

30 June, 2024. for this item:

Details of interest income on FDR (Agrani

Bank PLC) of Tk. 395,447,027 is as follows: » For Interest on income on FDR (Agrani
As per note no. 14.01 attached with the Bank PLC): '

financial statements a liability for Tk. | We have followed the note no. 14.01 atiached
22,920,805 was payable to Agrani Bank, | with the financial statements for checking and
Iswardi branch, Pabna as per joint audit | verifying the interest income with Agrani Bank,
report. But the transferee observed that there | Iswardi branch, Pabna.
remains inconsistency of the accounts, which

Cw
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was raised to BIMC for rectification. After
several meetings/discussion the matter was
resolved and a fripartite agreement was
reached among the Company, Bank and
BIMC. According to that agreement the
liability was paid by 30 September 2007.

» For other Interest income STD & others
FDR:

We obtained an understanding of the interest
recognition process and evaluated the design

Before that from the year 1982-2000 the Bank | @nd implementation of relevant controls,
created pressure to repay the loan. Due to | including ~ confrols over the setup and
authorization of interest rates and the

pressure from the Bank on 12 January 1989
both company and Bank reached at a
conclusion that a special fund will be
created fransferring money from cash credit
loan and Bank will pay interest to the fund
account at the rate applicable for cash
credit loan. Based on the condition of the
understanding a fund for Tk. 20,900,000 was
created through transferring amount from
the cash credit account during the period
from 22 January 1989 to 16 July 1992.
Subsequently as per instruction of the Bank
the amount of the fund converted to Fixed
Deposit and kept it to the of the Bank with
lien mark. This is the procedure of creation of
Fixed Deposit.

A total sum of Tk. 439,516,459 was received
from Agrani bank in various date.

The Agrani Bank has filed a review petition to
review the judgment of the Honorable
Supreme Court.

The stay order was vacated by the Hon'ble
Court on 9-11-2021. The Board decided the
amount BDT. 43,95,16,459.00 (forty-three
crore ninety-five lac sixteen thousand four
hundred fifty-nine) received from FDR
investment with Agrani Bank Limited should
remain in as liability until the settlement of
Artha Rin Adalat case no. 89/2013, Pabna.
The amount has been adjusted during the
year debiting Liability account and crediting
Interest account as per board resolution |
dated December 28, 2025.

All the matters have resolved before 9-11- |
2021 has been described vide note no. 14.01
attached herewith.

Note no. 29.00 to the financial statements

automated calculation of interest. We tested
selected controls over the posting of interest to
the general ledger.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information compirises all of the
information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to_jas
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materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, The Companies Act 1994, The Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and
other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Companies Act, 1994 require the management to
ensure effective internal audit, internal control and risk management functions of the company.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the company or to cease operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or emor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in circumstances.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
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statements or, if such disclosers are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
event in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the company to express an opinion on the financial statements we
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the company audit. We solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with The Companies Act 1994, and The Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and
relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also report
that:
a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof:

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books as required by
law have been kept by the company so far as it appeared from our examinations of those
books;

c) The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss & Other Comprehensive
Income and Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows of the Company
dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns; and

d) The expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the Company's business.

4
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FAMES & R
Place : Dhaka Chartered Accountants
Dated : January 01, 2026 DVC # 2601010474A5689909
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Particulars Notes Amount in Taka
|30 June 2024 || 30 june 2023 |

ASSETS
A. Non-Current Assets:
Property,Plant and Equipment 3 54,931,978 40,023,839
Investment in equity 4 1000841 1,000,841
Total Non-Current Assets (A) 55,932,819 61,024,680
B. Cumrent Assets:
Inventories 5 214,450852 264,102,150
Trade & Other Receivables é - 998,379
Advances, Deposits and Prepayments 7 80,884,246 117,250,294
Investment in FDR 8 392,093,366 429,075,740
Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 84,492 446 73.635.540 |
Total Current Assets (B) p24! 91 885,062,102
Total Assets (A+8) —f2.853727 946006782
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
C. Shareholders’ Equity:
Share Capital 10 222,985,490 222,985,490
Capital Reserve 21,350 21,350
General Reserve 1,395,080 1,395,080
Revaluation Reserve 1 7.807.784 8,341,096
Tax Holiday Reserve 12 10,747,334 10,747,334
Retained Eamings 13 169906416 (55.150.779)
Total Shareholders' Equity (C) 412863454 188339571
D. Non-Current Liabilities:
Long Term Loan Fund 14 236,287,126 205876918
Deferred Tax Liability 15 3704228 4,124 803
Total Non-Current Liabliities (D) 239991354 210001721
E. Current Liabllities:
Advance Aqainst Sales 16 3.802,147 3.900.470
Security and Other Deposits 17 19.822 19.822
Other Current Liabilities 18 9.326.756 451,045,109
Unpaid Dividend 19 213,571 231,756
Provision for Taxes 20 120,268,527 53,729,770
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 21 7.522.403 19,985,855
Bank Overdraft 22 18,772,080 18,772.080
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 23 1507361 460,628
Total Current Liabilities (E) 174,998,920 547
F. Total Liabilities F= (D+E) 414,990,275 757,747,211
G. Total Equity and Liabilities G=(C+F) 827,853,729 946,086,782
Net Assets Value Per Share (NAVPS) 24

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial stateme: 5 !
c ny Sec (Acting) m%(

This is the Statement of Financial Position referred to in our report of even date.

Place: Dhaka
Date: January 01, 2026

Partner
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants
DVC: 2601010474AS5689909
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ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June, 2024

Amount in Taka

sty Notes |35 June 2024 30 June 2023
Revenue (Turnover) 25 309,442,422 318,650,269
Less : Cost of Sales 26 359,454,753 305,138,367
Gross Profit (50,012,331) 13,511,902
Less: Operating Expenses:
Administrative Expenses 27 29,600,123 19,648,389
Selling & Distribution Expenses 28 1,729,573 820,036
Total Operating Expenses 31,329,696 20,468,425
Operating Profit /Loss (81,342,027) (6,956,523)
Less: Financial Expenses
Interest on Long Term Loan 30,410,208 30,410,208
Net Operating Profit /Loss (111,752,235) (37.366,731)
Add:Non Operating Income:
Interest Income 29 426,012,062 30,776,566
Other Income 30 12,900 314,800
Dividend from CDBL 1,000,000 1,250,000
Total Non operating Income 427,024,962 32,341,366
Net Profit before W.P.P.F 315,272,727 (5.025,365)
Less: Workers Profit Participation Fund @ 5% 15,012,987 -
Net Profit before Tax 300,259,740 (5.025,365)
Provision for Tax:
Income Tax Expense 31 (76.156,432) (13,060,688)
Deferred Tax 15 420,575 754,702
Net profit after Tax 224.523,883= 17,331,351
Earning per share (EPS) 32 10.07 (0.78)

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements

’
Company mrﬁ (Acting)

Managin

(Acting)

]

This is the Statement of Comprehensive Income referred to in our report of even date.

ool

Place: Dhaka
Date: January 01, 20246

Partner
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants
DVC: 2601010474A5689909

60




FAMES & R

CHARTERED ACCOL NTANTS

ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2024
Share Tax Holiday |Capital | General | Revaluation| Refained Total
Particulars Caplital Reserve |Reserve| Reserve Reserve Eamings EqQuity
[Tk Tk} k] LS| L3 | L3 | )
Opening Balance as on
1st July 2023:
Retained Earnings . . - . . 155.150,779)|  155.150.779)
Share copital 222,985,450 - - - - - 222.985,4%0
Tax Holiday Reserve - 10,747,334 - . . o 10,747,334
Copital Reserve . . 21,350 . - 21,350
General Reserve . - = 1.395.080 - : 1.395.080
| Revaluation Reserve . - - . 8341096 = 8341006
-T 222,985,490 | 10,747,334 | 21,350 | 1,395,080 8.341,09 (55.150,779)| 188.339.57
Net Profit during the year - - - - - 224523883 | 224523853
Depreciation of Reserve
on Revaluation of Fixed . . . - (533,312 533312 =
Assets (2023-24)

Divi - : .
Tolal Balance | 222,985490 | 10,747,334 | 21,350 | 1,395080 | 7,807,784 | 169906416 | 412863454
ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the yeor ended 30 June 2023

Share Tax Holiday |Capital | General | Revaluation Retained Total
Padiculars Capital Reserve |Reserve| Reserve Reserve Earnings Equity
Mk} k. k] k) Mkl k) Me)
Opening Balance as on
Ist July 2022:
Retained Eamings - - - - - (31.868.574) (31.868.574)
Share capital 222,985,490 - - - - - 222.985.490
Tax Holiday Reserve - 10,747,334 - - - - 10.747.334
Caopital Reserve - - 21350 - - - 21,350
General Reserve - - - 1.395.080 - - 1.395.080
Revaluation Reserve - - - - $.079.807 - 9.079.807
Sub-Total 222,985.490 | 10,747,334 | 21,350 | 1,395,080 9.079.807 (31.868.574)| 212,350,487
Net Profit during the yeaor - - - - - (17.331.351)] (17.331.351)
Depreciation of Reserve
on Revaluation of Fixed - - - - (738.711) 738711
Assets (2022-23)
Dividend poid (6.689.565) (6.689.565)
Total Balance 222,985,490 | 10,747,334 | 21,350 | 1,395,080 8,341,096 (55.150,779)| 188.339.571
Company Sec ng Managing & CEO(

This is the Statement of Changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

Place: Dhaka
Date: January 01, 2026
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ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June, 2024

Amount in Taka

PORNCHNS Notes |5 June 2024 | 30 June 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Cash receipts from customers and others 309,455,322 318,965,069
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (353,940,168)| (384,387,178)
Advance Payment of tax as per section-64 (13,052,459) (6,647.,948)
Payment made to workers profit participation funds
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 33.00 (57,537,305)| (72,070,057)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipments (153,202) (3,952,993)
Investment in Current Assets (FDRs) (22,772,375)| (365,133,276)
Received from Encashment of FDR 59,754,753 463,427,011
Interest Received 30,565,035 30,776,566
Dividend received 1,000,000 1,250,000
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) 68,394,211 126,367,308
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
SOD Loan paid - =
Dividend Paid - (6.689.565)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities ( C) - (6.689,565)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents: 10,856,906 47,607,686
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year 73,635,540 26,027,854
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year 84,492,446 73,635,540
Net Operating Cash Flow per share (Restated) 34.00 | (2.58)| (3.23)|

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Company s«:rg (Acting) Managing %b (Acting)

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

Place: Dhaka
Date: January 01, 2026
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ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June, 2024

The Company and its Operations:

Legal form of the Company:

Alhaj Textile Mills Limited was incorporated on March 3, 1961 as ‘Private’ Company, limited by
shares and registered with the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms under the
Companies Act, 1913 (subsequently amended in the year 1994) vide its Registration No. 1517.
Subsequently this Private Limited Company was converted into a Public Limited Company by
shares on October 7, 1967. In the year 1972 the company was nationalized through the P.O-
27 and the mill was operated under the management of Bangladesh Textile Mills
Corporation. Thereafter on 12 December 1982 the company was denationalized and
returned back to its previous owners.

Enlistment with the Stock Exchange
Company was listed with the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) in the year 1968.

Address of the Registered & Corporate Office:

The registered office and principal place of business of the company is located at 66,
Dilkkusha Commercial Area (4" Floor), Dhaka-1000 and its factory is situated at LK. Road,
Ishurdi, Pabna.

Nature of Business Activities:
The principal activities of the Company throughout the year are to manufacture cotton yam
and market its product in local and foreign markets.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Preparation, Presentation and Disclosure of the Financial Statements:

The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of information are made in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, International Accounting
Standard (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). The Statement of Financial Position
and Statement of Comprehensive Income have been prepared according to IAS-]
“Presentation of Financial Statements” based on accrual basis of accounting following going
concern assumption under generally accepted accounting principles and practices in
Bangladesh and Statement of Cash Flows according to IAS-7 “Statement of Cash Flows™.

Accounting Convention & Assumption:

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except property,
plant and equipment which was taken as revalue in the year-1988 and at cost for addifion
after the year1988.

Principal Accounting Policies:
The specific accounting policies have been selected and applied by the Company’s
management for significant transactions and events that have a material effect within the
Framework for preparation and presentation of the financial statements. Financial statements
have been prepared and presented in compliance with IAS-1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”. The previous year's figures were formulated according to the same accounting
principles. Compared to the previous year, there were no significant changes in the
accounting and valuation policies affecting the financial position and performance of the
Company. However, changes made to the presentation are explained in the note for each
respective item. Accounting and valuation methods are disclosed for reasons of clarity. The
Company classified the expenses using the function of expenses method as per IAS-1.
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The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of information were made
in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, Securities and Exchange
Rules 2020, Listing Regulations of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and other laws and
regulations applicable in Bangladesh. On the basis of these regulations, International
Accounting Standards (IAS) &International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) were applied

with the applicable standards.

2,05 Critical Accounting Estimates, Assumptions & Judgments:

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with IFRS that requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in
the process of applying the Company's accounting policies.

2.06 Going Concern:

The Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future.
For this reason going concemn basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements.

2.07 Components of the Financial Statements:

According to the International Accounting Standards (IAS)-1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements" the complete set of Financial Statements includes the following components™:

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June, 2024;

Explanatory Information.

2,08 Application of Standards:

The following IASs and IFRSs are applied for the financial statements of the year under review:

IAS-1 Presentation of Financial Statements;
IAS -2 Inventories;
|AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows;

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June, 2024;
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June, 2024;
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June, 2024 and

Notes, comprising a summary of significant Accounting Policies and Other

IAS-8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors:

IAS-10  Events after the Reporting Period;
IAS-12  Income Taxes;

IAS-16  Property, Plant & Equipment;
IAS-19  Employee Benefits;

IAS-21  The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates:

IAS-23  Borrowing Cost;

IAS-24  Related Party Disclosures;

IAS-32  Financial Instrument Preparation;
IAS-33  Earnings per Share;

IAS-34  Interim Financial Reporting;
IAS-36 Impairment of Assets;

IAS-37  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assefs;

IAS-38 Intangible Assets;

IFRS-7 Financial Instrument: Disclosure;

IFRS-9 Financial Instrument;

IFRS-1S Revenue from contracts with customers;
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2.09 Property, Plant & Equipment:

a. Recognition and Measurement:
In compliance with IAS-16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) items of Property, Plant and
Equipment (PPE), has been measured at revalue amount on 1988 and thereafter all
additions at cost less accumulated depreciation excluding land. The cost of an item of
PPE comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable taxes after deducting
trade discount and rebates and any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the

location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended
manner,

b. Subsequent Costs:
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in
the carmying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.
The day-to-day maintenance cost, on PPE, is recognized as expenses in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as incurred.

c. Depreciation:
No depreciation is charged on land.
Consistently, depreciation is provided on diminishing balance method based on written
down value at which the asset is camied in the books of account. Depreciation continues
to be provided until such time as the written down value is reduced to taka one.

Depreciation has been charged on additions on the basis of when it is available for use
and also depreciation has been charged on property plant and equipment in the year of
disposal.

The rate of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Sk | Name of the Assets Rate ( %)

A Land & Land Development

1 Land -

2 Land & Land Development (Road and Culvert) 5%,

B Building & Others Construction

1 Building & Construction 10%

2 Other Building, Construction & Installation and Generator House 10%

3 H/O Interior Decoration 10%

c Plant & Machineries:

1 Plant and Machinery, All Other Workshop, Powef House, Fire Fighting, 10%
Office, Transport, Loose Tools, Laboratory & Appliance

2 Air Compressor, Testing Lab, Grinding, Boiler Installation, Water
Treatment Gas Pipeline, Fire Fighting, Humidification Plant, Gas 10%
Generator and Other Machines

3 Laboratory Appliance & Cooling Tower 10%

4 Plant and Machinery (Evaluation Unit) 10%

5 Gas Generator Overhauling 10%

D Motor Car & Vehicle:

1 Motor Car, By-Cycle & Truck 10%

E Furniture & Fixture:

1 All Furniture

R ST R G| Prmeben
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2 | Air Condition and Residential Furniture / 10%
F Other Sundry Assets
1 Soft Furnish, Arms and Ammunition 10%
2 Books, Cookeries, Radio, TV, Interior, Telephone, Mobile, Mike, Fax,
Sign Board, Refrigerator, Water Tank, Games & Sports and others. 10%
3 C.C. Camera 10%
4 Computer Machine 25%
5 Upgrading and Modernization of Carding Machine & Drawing Frame
Machine 10%
é Upgrading and Modernization of Carding Savio Auto Cone Machine 10%
G Major Machineries
1 Gas Generator Major Overhauling 10%
2 Carding Machine 10%
3 Drawing Frame Machine 10%
4 Savio Auto Cone Machine 10%

d. Retirements and Disposals:
An asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use and subsequent disposal. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carmrying amount of the asset and is recognized as gain or loss from disposal of asset under
other income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.10 Impairment of Assets:
All assets have been reviewed according to IAS-36 Impairment of Assets and it was
confirmed that no such assets have been impaired during the year and for this reason no
provision has been made for impairment of assets.

2.11 Inventories:
Inventories comprises of raw cotton, spare parts, packing materials, work in process, finished
goods (yarn), store in transit, stock of waste cotton etc. Physical inventory has been taken at
27" July, 2025 along with the statutory auditor of the company FAMES & R, Chartered
Accountants.

Inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value in
compliance to the requirements of IAS-2. Costs including an appropriate portion of fixed and
variable overhead expenses are assigned to inventories by the method most appropriate to
the particular class of inventory. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for
the inventories less all estimated cost of completion and cost necessary to make the sale.

2.12 Cash & Cash Equivalents:
Cash & cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash at banks of the Company. There is
an insignificant risk of change in value of the same.

2.13 Creditors & Accrued Expenses:
2.13.1 Trade & Other Payables:
Liabilities are recorded at the amount payable for settiement in respect of goods and

services received by the Company. These include Advance against Sales, Security and Other
Deposits and Other Current Liabilities.
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2.13.2 Provisions:

2,14

215

Necesspty provision for the current assetls which are seems to be doubtful of recovery are
made in the financial statements in conformity with International Accounting Standards.

Employees' Benefit:
Employees of the Company are entitled to get the following benefits from the Company:

a. Festival Bonus:
The Company gives two festival bonuses to its all-contractual employees each year.

b. Workers' Profit Participation Fund:
This represents 5% of the net profit after charging as per provisions of Bangladesh Labour
Law, 2006 (as amended in 2013) and is payable to the workers as defined under the said
Law.

Income Tax:

2.15.1 Current Tax:

Provision for taxation has been made as per rates prescribed in the Finance Act, 2024 and
the Income Tax Act, 2023 on profit made by the company. As per IAS-12 Income Tax
Provision has been made during the year as the company eamed taxable income.

2.15.2 Deferred Tax:

216

217

2.18

2.19

T

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the camying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Related Party Transactions:

Company is not connected to any related party transaction except Tk. 44,63,960/- as
mentioned in Note -36 for Honorarium paid to the Chairman, Remuneration to the Managing
Director & CEO.

Contingent Liabilities &Contingent Assets:

Contingent liabilities and assets are current or possible obligations or assets, arising from past
events and whose existence is due to the occumrrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events which are not within the control of the Company. In accordance
with IAS-37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates exclusive of VAT as per IFRS-
15 Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and reward of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably and there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods sold. Transfer of risk and rewards occurs for the sale of goods
when the product is delivered along with dispatch documents and invoices to customers.

Foreign Currency Translation:
Transactions in foreign cumencies are translated into Bangladesh Taka at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities are
converted at the rates prevailing at the Statement of Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary
assets and ligbilities denominated in foreign currencies, stated at historical cost are translated
into Bangladesh Taka at the exchange rate ruling at the date of transaction. s
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Statements of Cash Flows:
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance with IAS-7: Statement of Cash

Flows and the cash flows from operating activities have been presented under direct
method.

Earning per Share:

The Company calculates Eaming per Share (EPS) in accordance with 1AS-33: “Earning per
Share", which has been shown on the face of Statement of Comprehensive Income, and the
computation of EPS is stated in the note. Earnings per Share has been calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period and retrospective effect has also
been given for calculation of previous year's earnings as well as to conform to the current
year's presentation,

Segment Reporting:

No segmental reporting is applicable for the company as required by IFRS-8: “Operating
Segment" as the company operates in a single industry segment and within a single
geographical territory.

Comparative:

Financial statements are presented as IAS-1 ‘‘Presentation of Financial Statements” and
previous year's figures have been reclassified, re-amranged and restated where found
necessary to provide information that is reliable and more relevant and to conform to the
current year's presentation due to changes accounting policies accounting estimates and
errors as per IAS-8 ''Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emrors*'.

Reporting Period:
The financial statements cover one year from 01July, 2023 to 30 June, 2024.

General:
Figures appearing in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest taka.

e L
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3.00 Property Plant and Equipment :
Particulars

The balance is made up as follows:

Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year

Less:Adjustment during the year

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net Written Down Value as on 30.06.2024 (A)

Increase in value on revaluation of fixed assets- opening balance

Less: Depreciation during the year

Net Increase in value on Revaluation as on 30.06.2024 (B)
Closing balance of Property ,Plant and Equipment (A+B)
(Details of Fixed Assets has been shown in Schedule-1 & 2)

4.00 Investment in equity:

Details are stated below:

Investment in Shares of Alhaj Jute Mills Lid.
Investment in Shares of CDBL (Equity)

Total

CDBL reaches to 500,000 shares.

FAMES & R

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Amount in Taka

30 June 2024 | 30 June 2023

424368212 420415219
153,202 3952993
424,521,414 424,348212
424,521,414 424368212
(377.397.221)  (372.685.469)
47,124,193 51,682,743
8,341,096 9,079,807
(533.312) (738.711)
7,807,784 8,341,096

54,931,978 60.023 839

h

841
1,000,000

841
1,000,000

1.000.841 1,000,841

The company hold 90 shares of the Alhaj Jute Mills Limited since long. The face value of the share is Tk.
10.00 each but in 1982 when the Jute Mill was De-Nationalized the Government fixed the price of per
share at Tk. 9.34. Hence for 90 shares the Company paid Tk. 840.60 to the Government which is shown in
the Statement of Financial Posifion. Investment in share of CDBL Tk. 1,000,000 represents 100,000 share of
Tk. 10 each. Subsequently the company received 400,000 bonus share. So the total number of share in

5.00 Inventories:
Raw Cotton (Note-5.01) 56,488 13,951,456
Work in Process (Note-5.02) 272,633 972,991
Finished Goods (Note-5.03) 191,919,188 224243757
Stores and Spares (Note-5.04) 18,721,659 18.948.025
Store in Transit (Note-5.05) - 3.529.091
Stock at Spinning (Packing Material) 595,365 595365
Stock of Waste Cotton 2885519 1,861,465
Total 214,450 264,102,150

5.01 Raw Cofton: 2023-2024 2022-2023

Quantity (Kg) | Amount (Tk) Amount (Tk) |  Amount (Tk)

Opening Stock of Raw Cotton 42,268 13,951,456 335,061 107.215893
Add. Purchase during the year 806,472 200,262,030 867,332 236,859.613
Raw Cotton available for use 848,740 214,213,486 1,202,393 344,075,506
Less. Closing Stock (275) (56.488) (42,268) (13,951.456)
Consumption during the year B848.445 214,156,998 1,160,125 330,124.050

Z

=
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5.02 Work In-Process:

= Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
2023-2024 2022-2023
No. RSO Gy Tolal Gy in Toal
(Xg.) Valve (Tk) (Xg.) Value (Tk)
1 |60/1 Auto Cotton Yam in Cone - - - -
2 |54/ Auto Cone Khd) 94,48 - -
3 |50/1 Auto Cone - - 2817 918414
S0/1 Auto Cone (Special) 205 49,138 - -
4 |20/1,Rotor Yamn in Cone 831 118615 333 36846
5 |16/1,Rotor Yam in Cone 212 10,399 are 12.72%
6 |10/ Rotor Yamn in Cone - - - -
Total 1,619 272,633 3,529 729
Reconciliation of Work in Process: 2023-2024 2022-2023
in Kg Qty in Kg
Opening Work In Process: Spinning: 2818 13918
Rotor: 711 3,529 6,734 20,652
Input from store during the year: Raw Cotion: 848,465 1,176.586
851,994 1,197,238
Less:Closing Work In Process: Spinning: 576 2818
Rotor: 1,043 {1619 711 (3.529)
Quantity avallable for production uo.sm_ 1,193,709
Production of Yarn during the year: Spinning: 730,705 998.147
Rotor: 43,001 773,706 73,347 1,071,494
Wastage/Normal Loss 76,669 122215
850.375 1,193,709
% of wastage/Normal Loss = 02 T 1024
5.03 Closing stock of Finished Goods:
Amount in Taka Amount in Taka |
sl 2023-2024 2022-2023
S GQlyin Total_ Glyin Tolal
(Xg.) Value (Tk) (Kg.) Valve (Tk)
1 |74/) Auto Cotton Yam in Cone 12,111 6,243,908 12,112 6.243.907
2 |68/) Auto Cotton Yam in Cone 45 18.057 45 18.057
3 |60/ Auto Cotton Yam in Cone 54,114 24.675.984 58.650 27.980.775
4 |54/1 Auto Cotton Yam in Cone 302.778 131,405,652 185,432 85.160.726
5 |50/1 Auto Cotton Yam in Cone 34,383 13,374,987 - -
& |50/) Auto Cotton Yam in Cone (Special) 33,430 13.238.280 22) 492 100.268.748
7 |20/) Rotor Yarn in Cone 14,333 2.543.70% 23995 4176232
8 |16/) Rotor Yo in Cone 6,849 418611 34674 395312
9 |10/) Rotor Yarn in Cone - -
Tolal 458.044 191.919.188 505.401 224.243.757
5.04 Stores & Spares:
Amount in Amount in
No. 30 June 2024 | 30 June 2023
1 |iron & Steel 176,824 174,252
2 _|Pipes, Tube & Fitting 801.363 741 765
3 |Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 2.168,006 1,099,460
4 |Raw Materials & Chemicals 5,793 660
5 |Paint and Varnish 95,209 58.706
6 |General Hardwares 157.784 148.130
7 |Loose Tools 61,662 56878
8 |Domestic Equipment 4.008 2.482
9 __|Furniture & Fixtures 10.042 3.517
10_[Packing Materials 2,544,026 3,673,591
11_|[Laboratories Appliance 114,763 114,763
12_|Mechanical Equipment & Spare parts 10,065,042 10,558.104
13 _|Electrical Equipment & Spares 2,358,921 2,235,294
14 |Office Equipment 55.219 45.100
15 [Miscellaneous Stock 102,997 35323
Total 18,721,659 18,948,025

An Association of
Independent Accomnning Firms
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5.05

6.00

6.01

7.00

Stores - In - Transit:
Particulars

L/C No.4006/408/11/2001
Total

Note: Refer to note No-21.03

Trade & Other Receivables:

Details of the balance are as follows:

Particulars

Trade Debtors:

Amount receivable against Export sale as per last account
Sundry Debtors:

Accrued Income (Interest on FOR lien with PGCL)

Total

Trade Receivables:
Particulars

Tarunno Check Fabrics
Suhi Industrial Park Lid
Total

6.01

FAMES & R

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

50 une 2034 130 une 7675

3.529.091

3,529,091

998,379

998.379

744303
254.076

998.379

Store in transit 7k.3,.529,091/- and other receivable amounting to Tk.998.379/- Total Tk 4,527,470 has been
written off during the year as per Board resolution dated 28-12-2025,

Advances, Deposits and Pre-payments:

This is unsecured, considered good and consists of the following balances:

Particulars

ADVANCES:

Advance against salary

Advance against TA/DA

Advance against purchase

Advance Against Company Income Tax
Other Advances & Prepayments
Advance Against Supply

Loan to Alhgj jute mills #d.(AJML)

Total Advances

DEPOSITS:

Custom Deposit

Deposit at Agrani bank against BIMC liabilities(Principal)

Bank guarantee against customn deposit for Humidification Plant
Against Oxygen Cylinder

Security deposits against gas connection

Total Deposits

PREPAYMENTS:

Insurance Premium

Prepaid expenses

Total Pre-payments

Total Advances, Deposits & Pre-Payments

":.“| ﬁhfﬁ

7.01
7.02
7.03
704
7.05

7.06

ﬁ’
=

85,000 -

11,700 16,145

13,401 240886
61,988,431 48,897 834
186,032 251,015
314818 314818
1,151,728 1,151,728
63.751.110 50,872.426
107.470 82.142
- 50.761.093
34,290 34,290

4,000 4,000
15,283,525 14939822
15,429,285 45,821,347
30,599 556.521
1,673.252 -
1,703,851 556,521
80,884,246 117,250,294
. Am Association of )
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Amount in Taka
30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023

7.01 Advances Against Salary:

Particulars
Md. Shamsul Huda D.G.M (Admin. Accounts ond Legal offcirs) 85,000 -
Md.Sharif Abu Bakar Audit Officer - -
Total 85,000 -
7.02 Advances Against TA/DA:
Particulars Designation
Md. Akhtaruzzaman D.GM (P & M) - 4,445
Md . Jalal uddin Sr.Accounts Officer 2,700 2.700
Md.Abu Kawser Asst.comm. Officer 9.000 9.000
Md.Nazmul Hossain Asst.manager (Share) -
Total 11 Im 1 6.145
7.03 Advances Against Purchase:
Particulars sl
Md. Akhtaruzzaman D.GM (P &M) = 225,900
Md. Abul Hossain M.com 1.585
Md.Nazmul Hossain Asst.manager (Share) 2,149 2.149
BRB Cable Industries Ltd. 11,252 11,252
Total 13,401 240886
7.04 Advances Against Company Income Tax:
Year wise details are as under
Accounting Year Assessment Year
1986-1987 198788 - 705,708
1997-1998 1998-99 - 5.445
1998-1999 1999-2000 - 28858
2002-2003 2003-2004 - 33,174
2005-2006 2006-2007 - 126.226
2008-2009 2009-2010 - 3.387.331
2009-2010 2010-2011 - &3.771
2012-2013 2013-2014 - 475,528
2013-2014 2014-2015 2,989.346 2.989.346
2014-2015 2015-2016 - 1.611.349
2015-2016 2016-2017 4274118 4274118
2016-2017 2017-2018 8,205,042 8.205.042
2017-2018 2018-2019 7.589.833 9.253.298
2018-2019 2019-2020 1.292.777 1,292,777
2019-2020 2020-2021 4,302,765 4302765
2020-2021 . 2021-2022 3.756.149 3.756.149
2021-2022 2022-2023 3.877.994 3877.994
2022-2023 2023-2024 6,647,948 6,647,948
2023-2024 2024-2025 13.052.459 -
Add.Tax paid for the year 2013-2014 4,000,000 -
Less: Adujustment during the year(2013-2014) - (475.528)
Less: Adujustment during the year(2017-2018) - (1.663.465)
Total §1988.431 __ 48897834
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Amount in Taka
30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023
7.05 Other Advances & Prepayment:
M/S. Alhaj Jute Mills Lid. 1,408 1,408
Bangladesh General Insurance Co. (BGIC) 20,000 90,000
Md. Akhtaruzzaman D.GM (P & M) 14,500 79.483
Md.Mizanur Rahman (Shahjadpur) S.R 5124 5124
SK Md.Murshed 50,000 50,000
Md.Abdus Salam Advocate 25,000 25,000
Total 186,032 251,015
7.06 Insurance Premium:Tk.
Details are as under
Particulars
BGIC/DIO/FB-0024/2/22 - 258,185
BGIC/DZO/FP/0004/1/22 87.34)
BGIC/DZO/FP/0005-1/22 - 128,850
BGIC/DZIO/FP-0006/1/22 - 31,475
BGIC/DZO/FP-0301/08/2021 14,509
BGIC/DZO/FP-300/08/21 - 5,344
BGIC/DZO/MV/PV/CERT-008%/02/2022 - 30817
BGIC/DZO/MV/PV/CERT-0088/01/2024 30,599 -
Total — e 556,521
8.00 Investment in FDR:
E;"?;';g‘: as under Principal Interest
Rupali Bank Ltd. (FDR) 220,433,080 22,791,768 243,224,848 230,018,103
Janata Bank Ltd (FDR) 72,265,600 7.518,287 79.783,887 133,829,557
Bangladesh Commerce Bank Lid. (Fl 229,135 2,673 231,808 -
Bangladesh Development Bank Lid. (f 59,600,000 9.107,795 68,707,795 65,088,630
BRAC Bank Ltd. (FDR) 139,450 5,578 145,028 139,450
Total 392,093,366 _429,075,740_
9.00 Cash and Cash Equivalents:
The above balance is made up as follows:
Particulars
Cash in Hand 1,086,198 599
Cash at Bank
Janata Bank, Local office, Dhaka. SND A/C0887 1,803,906 1,809,400
Agrani Bank, Ishwardi, Pabna. CD A/C No-1085 503 503
Agrani Bank CD A/C No-1773 5,685 5,685
Agrani Bank CD A/C No-1532 7.605 7,605
Agrani Bank STD A/C No-152 12,241 12,241
Agrani Bank STD A/C No-4536 52,253,649 50,652,241
Bangladesh Commerce Bank-105 18,105
Prime Bank.Ishurdi,Pabna CD A/C 60008502 388 1,858
Dutch-Bangla Bank Ltd. Dilkkusha,CD A/C-1011100055085 33,605 37.985
Mercantile Bank PLC-236204 8,229,702
Prime Bank.IBB Dilkusha STD A/C 90034875 2,028,148 2,025,279
Prime Bank.|BB Dilkusha STD A/C-3108315011216 250,291 268,763
IFIC Bank Ltd.Stock Exchange Br. SND A/C -0180030890041 30,443 12,169,230
Al Arafah Islami Bank Ltd.Panthapath Br.SND A/C-0841020010647 18,386,490 6,200,710
NRB Bank Ltd.Dilkusha Br. SND A/C -1081030009018 345,487 443,44

Total cash at bank
Total

AN P B, VA e et

83.406.248 73,634,941
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10.00 Share Capital: Amount in Taka
|30 June 2024 | 30 June 2023 |
10.01 Authorized Capltal : Tk. 500,000,000
50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/- each. e 300,000,000 500,000,000
10.02 Issved Subscribed and Paid up Capltal: Tk, 222,985,490
a) i) 590,165 Ordinary Shares of Tk, 10/- each. 5,901,650 5901650
?&1:'.708.384 Bonus Shares of Tk, 10/- each. 217.083.840 217083840
—rtAIOS A0 222985490
b)  Movement of share capital
Opening balonce 222,985,450 222985490
Add: Issuve of bonus share during the year - -
Total ——lRR385A0 222985450
c) Composition of Shareholding :
Grouping of the shareholders Shareholdings % Shareholdings =
1) Government 1,623 001% 1,623 0.01%
2) Sponsors/Directors 6,835,452 30.65% 5.716,059 25.63%
3) Financial Institutions 2753973 12.35% 4,111,406 18.44%
4) General Public 12,707,501 56.99% 12.469.46) 55.92%
Total e 22,298,549 100% 2229854 ___100%

d) Details of the Shareholding are given below:
The distribution schedule showing the number of Shareholders ond thelr shareholding in percentoge has been
disclosed below as the requirement of the “Listing Regulation™ of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited.

Range of Holdings No.of % of No. of Shares % of Share
in number of Shares Shareholders | Shareholders 2023-2024 Capital
110 499 1209 54.68% 116017 0.52%
500 to 5000 635 28.72% 1249817 5.60%
5001 to 10000 144 651% 116654) 5.23%
10001 to 20000 102 461% 1426545 6.40%
20001 to 30000 43 1.95% 1045707 4.69%
30001 to 40000 15 0.68% 540315 2.42%
40001 to 50000 10 0.45% 461875 2.07%
50001 o 100000 20 0.50% 1327893 S96%
100001 to above 33 1.50% 14963839 67.11%
Total 221 100% 22,298,549 100%

@) Allshares have been fully called and paid up in cash. There was no preference shares issued by the company.
f)  Market Price:
The shoares of the Company ore listed with the Dhaoko Stock Exchange Limited and quoted market price was of T,
149.70 per share in the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited on 30 June, 2024. During the year 2023-2024 the low price
and high price per share were Tk 118,90 and Tk. 213 respectively.
11.00 Revaluation Reserve:
The above balance is made up as follows:

Opening Balance 8,341,096 9.079.807
Less:Accumulated Depreciation (533.312) (738711)
Closing Balance 7,807,784 8,341,096

Fixed assets of the company were revalued on 30-04-1988 by M.A.Maliik & Co. Chartered Accountants.Book Value
(Cost-Dep.) of assets was Tk.14,185,000 and were revalued at Tk.206,801.000 ot the camying depreciation the

revaluation reserve stand Tk. 7,681,679 and written down value of revaluation assets stand Tk. 7.681.679 as on 30-06-
2024. The defailed position as on June 30th, 2024 is shown under Revaluation of Fixed Asset: Schedule-2. which is

equal to above stated Reserve on Revaluation of Fixed Assets,

Land 1,554,675 1.554.675
Fixed Assets other than land 6.253.109 6,786,421
Total e LROL TR e S 34).0%

12.00 Tax Holiday Reserve:
This represents reserve made on profit of the Unit No-02 of the company which enjoyed Tax holidoy up fo June. 30
2004 ¢s per Tax law.
Particulars
The above balance is made up as follows:
Opening Balance 10,747,334 10,747,334
Current year - -
Closing Balance — 10747334 10747334

Unit No-02 of the Company enjoyed Tax Holiday up to June 30, 2004. As such Tax Holiday Reserve has not been
provided during the year under audit (2023-2024).
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inT
1300 Retned Earming S0 me 2024 {30 e 3033

The above balonce is made up as follows:

Particulars

Opening Bolance 155.150.779) (31.848.574)

Dep.on Revaluation of Fixed Asset transferred to Retained Eamings 533312 738711

Net Profit / Loss during the year 224523883 (17.331.351)

Prior year's adjustment for :

Inventory cudit fee - .

Dividend Paoid - (6,489 545)

Closing balance 169,906,416 ___(55,150779)

14.00 Long Term Loan Fund:
The above balance is made up as follows:
Particulars Amount in Taka AmountinTaoka Amountin Taka Amount in Taka
30 June 30 June 2024 30 2023

Agrani Bank Lid. Industrial Loan-Principal: 1t BMRE 2nd BMRE Total Total

Opening Balance 36,340,740 50,471,371 86812311 86812311

Add: Received from Agrani Bank - - - -

Less: Poyment - - - -

Total: 36,340,940 50,471,371 86,812,311 86,812 311

Agrani Bank Ltd. Industrial Loan-Interest:

Opening Bolonce 39,538,958 12.772.364 119,064,607 88654399

Less: Payment - - - -

Sub-total 39,538,958 12,772,364 119,064,607 88.654.399

Add: Provision for Interest (| Pls. refer to

note no. 14.01) - - 30,410,208 30,410,208
Total 39,538,958 12,772,364 149,474,815 119.064.607
Totol 75879898 63243735 236287126 205876318

Total outstanding loan to Agroni Bank was Tk. 10.5584.391 (Long term loon Tk.86812311+ Bank overcroft

Tk.18,772,080/-) as of 13/4/2021. At present there is o money suit ogainst the loan. For this reason. no interest was
chaorged from financial year 2009-2010 to 2020-2021 Management Alhoj Textile Mills Limited fried 10 solve the matier
on the basis negofiation according to prevailing law of the country.

According to ortha Rhin Adalat Agrani Bank can reclize 3 fimes of the loan or amount settlied by the honorcbie
court. Monagement wrote a letter to Agrani Bank on 13-04-2021 sicting that they will pay 3 fimes of the loon (Loon
balance +interest as per book = Tk. 316,753.173/-) to avoid money suit.

Under the above circumstances management decided to provide interest on the cbove loon os per loan
agreement. The above provision was made for the period from 13-04-2021 to 30-06-2024.

Agrani Bank Lid. Ishurdi Branch, Pabna in its bank account statement hos shown the following balances as on  30.
06. 2011, Thereafter the company has received neither any bank statement nor any bank odvice in this respect.

Bank balance position of these long term loans as per Bank Statement as on 30th. June 2011 is as follows:
1st BMRE -30 2nd BMRE- 30 Total- 30 June,

Agrani Bank Lid. Industrial Loan Principal: June, 2011 June, 2011 2011

Amount in Taoka  Amount in Toka  Amount in Taka
Principal 46,002,622 346.796.719 82.799.341
Principal - 14,024,652 14024 652
Total Principal 46,002,622 50.821.3N _96.823.993
Interest Groce penod 7812145 8,023,302 15835.447
Interest Monitorial perod 34,792,408 15145272 49.937.680
Interest General period 36.148.851 - 36.148851
Total Interest 78,753,404 23,168,574 101,921,978
Total (Principal & Interest) 124,756,026 __73,989.945 198,745,971
Excess shown by the bank ﬂu‘]a__wlumm
Lond, Building, Plant and Machinery etc of the company has been morigoged with Agrani Bank Lid. ishurdi Branch,
Pabnec against loan.
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14.01 As eorier mentioned in note 1.01 the company was denationalzed and refumed bock 10 its previous owner but at the
time of transfer a liability of Tk.22,920.805 was shown in the joint audit report. The tronsferee ([owner) observed that their
remain inconsistency of the accounts which was raisec to BTMC for rectification. After several discussion with Bangladesh
Textile Mills Corporation, Bangladesh Textile Mills Association, Government and Bank the matter was resolved and a
fiportite agreement was signed among the company, bank and BTMC. According to that tripartite ogreement the
kobility was fully paid on 30 September 2007. Meanwhile during the period from the yeor 1982 to 2000 the Bonk gave
pressure 1o repay the loan. Due to continuous pressure from the bank on 12 January 1989 both the company and bank
reached ot o conclusion that a special fund will be created transferring money from cash credit loan and bank will pay
interest to the fund account ot the rate applicable for cash credit loon. Based on the condition of the understanding o
fund of Tk.20,900.000 was created through transferring amount from the cash credit account during the period from 22
Januory 1989 to 16 July 1992, Subsequently as per instruction of the bank the amount of the fund converted to Fixed
Deposit aond kept it 1o the bank with lien mark. After repayment of full amount of iability of BIMC the FDR money
including interest upto 31 May 2008 amived amounting to Tk.249,542.178. The bank agreed o pay only Tk.50,764,791.Due
to not agreed to pay calculoted amount of Tk.249.542.178, stopping the fransaction from cash credit account and lock
up the pledged godown the Company filed Writ Petition No.5129 of 2007. claiming interest cn Special Fund created by
the Mil against the bank before the Honcrable High Court. The Honorable High Court passed judgment on 15.02.2011
directing the Agrani Bank Ltd. to pay company’s deposit in Special Fund together with interest at “prachalita hare” on
such depocsit. In this context Agrani Bank Ltd. has filed an appeal against the order to the Honorable Supreme Cowurt,
Appeliate Division. After completion of various legal procedure The Honorable Appeliate Division passed judgment on
20.01.2014 that In the instant case the interest to be calculated on long term FDR. The Leave-petitioner was also directed
o pay interest on the FOR as per the rate of interest applicable 1o long term FOR within 1(one) month of the availability
of the certified copy of the order. Thereafter, passing the stipuloted period. the company filed an application for
ssuance of Supplementary Rule. After hecring the same the Honorable High Court Division fixed the date for hearing
referring Writ Petition No.5129 of 2009, and Contempt Petifion No 151 of 2013 a revised claim on the basis of judgment of
Tk.52.56 crore including interest for the period from 22 January 1989 to 27 February 2014 wos raised but the bonk has paid
Tk.81,125,001only again a demand of Tk.544,513,560.32 (Tk.481,311,503.17 + Tk.63,202.057.15) for payment of special fund
amount remained deposited with Agrani Bank Uimited, Ishwardi Branch, Pabno, and interest thereon at the rate of
interest of Long Term FOR from the dote of deposit to 31-08-2015, inclusive of interest of Tk.63,202,057.15 for the pericd
from 01.03.2014 1o 31.08.2015. This amount after deducting Tk.81,125,002.00 .already received by the company. stands ot
Tk.463,388,558.32. The supreme couwrt of Bangladesh, Appeliate Division has disposed of civil pefition for leave 1o Appeal
No. 405 of 2019 submitted by Agrani Bank Ltd. on appeal from the impugned order dated 14.01.2019 passed by the High
Court Division in contempt petition no. 151 of 2013 that refering with petition no. 5129 of 2009 and contempt petition no.
151 of 2013 Agrani Bank Lid. paid to Alhgj Textile Mills Ltd. Tk. 8,11,25,002 on 25.02.2014 which has been mentioned earlier.
On 5th March 2019 the bank was drected to ensure immediate payment of Tk. 25,00.00.000 and accordingly payment
was made . Again on 7th May 2019 the bank was directed to pay amounting to Tk. 108,391,457 and accordingly
payment was made. So, total Tk. 439,516,459 was received by the company ond the instant civil pefition for leave to
appeal Is disposed of. In this connection Agroni bank Ltd, khwardi Branch, Pabna filed the Case no. 89/13 dated 28-11-
2013 against the company (Alhgj Textile Mills Ltd.) together with its Chairman and Directors as defaulter for payment of
dues on long term loon agaoinst 1st. BMRE & 277, BMRE for Tk.289.847.500.64 and Short term Loans claiming for
Tk.77.674,358.80 being total as Tk.367.521,859.44 as on 20.11.2013 plus interest upto the date of payment to be received
instead of book balance of Tk.139,123,633 and Tk.18,772,080 respectively. Through wiit pefifion no: 6799 of 2014 of the
18'th day of July 2016 the Honorable High Court Division has granted stay of Artha Rin Case no: 89 of 2013. It is worthwhile
to disclose that in the prayer for staying the Artha Rin cose it wos mentioned that it is established upto the Apex Court of
the country that the respond Bank did not pay the dues of the pefifioner and the matter is now for the disposal before
the contempt court and keeping petitioners money in their hand filing Artha Rin case for realization of their loon is against
the spirt of the Artha Rin Adalat Ain 2003. As cerfified by the legal advisor of the compaony that since the further
proceedings of the Artha Rin case has been stayed by the Hon'ble court as such any transaction in connection with the
loan amount including charging interest upon the loan without prior permission of the Hon'ble court is amount to
violation of the court order and as such illegal. Necessary steps are being taken to settled the issue. Under the above
circumstance firstly since the interest connot be charged on loan due to having stay order as certified by the legal
odvisor, secondly due to having various method o determine the amount for settiing the old outstanding loan so at this
stage it is not possible to ascertain the amount reliably which is essential for accounting the expenses and liability as per
International Accounting Standord, thirdly since the disposal of contempt petition No. 151 of 2013 is connected with the
repayment of loan and finally the bank has submitted review petition for review the judgment of the Honorable Supreme
Court therefor the whole amount as received by the crder of the Honorable Supreme Court of Bonglodesh Appeliate
Division Tk, 439.514.459 has been considered as liobility.The stay order has been vacated by the Hon'ble Court on 09-11-
2021. The Board decided the amount BDT. 43,95,14,459.00 (forty-three crore ninety-five lac sixteen thousand four hundred
fifty-nine) received from FOR investment with Agrani Bank Limited should remaining in as kobiity until the settlement of
Artha Rin Adalot case no. 89/2013, Pabna. The amount has been adjusted during the year debiting Liability account and
crediting Interest account as per board resolution dated December 28, 2025.
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Amount in Taka

The above balance is made up as follows: 30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023
Particulars
Opening Balance 4,124,803 4,879,505
Add: (Reduction)/Addition during the year (Note-15.01) (420,575) (754,702)
Closing Balance 3704228 4,124,803
Calculation of Deferred Tax:
Particulars
Depreciable asset as per Financial Statements(excluding land value) 46,247,292 51,339,153
Depreciable asset as per tax base (excluding land value) (21,552,438) (23,840,466)
Temporary difference 24,694,854 27,498,687
Applicable tax rate 15% 15%
Deferred tax liability as at end of the year 3,704,228 4,124,803
Opening Balance 4,124,803 4,879,505
Reduction during the year ¥ )
16.00 Advance Against Sales:
The above balance is made up as follows:
SLNO |[Name of the party  |Address
1 __|Banijo bitan Pawra market, kumarkhali, kushtia 100,026 100,436
2 M/S Altaf Traders - 3,800,034
3 |M/S sarkar Traders 1,262
4 |[M/S Dalim Traders 3,699.984 -
5 M/S Pretom Traders 75
6 |M/S Nishat Enterprise 800
Total 3,802,147 3,900,470
17.00 Security and Other Deposits:
Details are as under
Particulars
Homes Enterprise 10,000 10,000
Bhai Bhai Traders 5,000 5,000
Rubican Insect Control Co. 4,822 4,822
Total 19,822 19,822
18.00 Other Current Liabilities :
Details are as under
Particulars
Trade Payables (Note -18.01) 5,066,373 4765876
Other Payables (Note -18.02) 1,571,674 2,524,502
Liabilities for VAT 2,044,795 2,541,627
Unpaid salary & wages 95,422 65,923
Income Tax Deduction from Parties 493,441 1,575,671
Sramik Kallan Tahabil 55,051 55,051
Received against legal claim(Agrani Bank) (Note-14.01) - 439,516,459

Total

g

9,326,756 451,045,109
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Amount in Taka
30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023
18.01 Trade Payables:
Particulars
M/s.|Bearing Palace 193,908 18,200
M/s.|Dana Engineers International Ltd. - 12,648
M/s.|K.S.Collection 486,126 580.650
M/s.|Lipika 512,801 718,459
M/s.|Macca Auto Paper Cone Product 1,077,540 1,077.540
M/s.|Mozaddedia Tarikat Mission Press 21,331 45)
M/s.|Mongj Air Technology Lid. 2476 2476
M/s.|M Hossain & Sons 99.180 165,996
Md. |M M Enterprise 304810 83.128
M/s.|Paper Cone Industries 1,569,358 1,573,049
M/s.|Saba machinery store 49,063 49.063
M/s.|Shah Paran Auto Mobile 3.710 3.710
M/s.|Standard Spring Industries 272,205 134,775
M/s.|Sumaiya Enterprise 328,929 260.705
M/s.|Star Enterprise 2.720 2.720
M/s.|Tex spare corporation 142,216 82.306
Total 5,066,373 4765876
18.02 Other Payables:

Particulars
M/s.|A. Salam Engineering Works 56,853 56853
M/s.|Alhaj Jute Mills Limited 333.274 333,274
M/s.|Acute ERP Solution - 15,000
M/s.|Ayan Mill Store 40,848 40,848
M/s.|Ad Point 2.340 15,360
M/s.|ASM Sayem Bhuiyan 94,500 -
M/s.|BDCOM Online Lid. 8.304 8,304
M/s.|Cargo Control Bangladesh Lid. 167,632 167.632
M/s.|Chand mansion (H/O rent) - 396.510
MRs |DR, Syeda Nasrub - 490.000
M/s.|Favourite Security Service Lid. 195,412 -
M/s.|FAMES & R 180,000 -
M/s.|Green Trade International 28,807 28,807
Md. |[Hasnat Quaiyumn (Advocate) 356.500 536.500
M/s.| Jewel Refrigeration - 28177
M/s.|Kalam Traders 47,958 199.037

Md.Bakhtiar Rahman chairman (Acting) 9.900 -

Md.Harunoor Rashid Director 9.900 -

Md. Joynul Abedin Chowdhury Director 9,900 -

MS Khodeza Khatoon Director 9.900 -
M/s.|Olympic courier service - 4410
M/s.|Puji Bazar 5.000 5.000
M/s.|Popular Advertising Lid. 14.646 14.646
M/s.|Soldier Security Services Limited - 179.144
M/s.|Tista soft - 5.000
Total 1,571,674 2,524,502
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Amount in Taka
30 J 4
19.00 Unpaid Dividend :
Details are as under

Opening balance 231,756 231.756

Add: refunded - -

Add.Dividend declared - -
231,756 231,756

Less: Paid to Shareholders (18,185) -

Less : Transferred to Capital Market Stabilization Fund - -
Closing balance 213,57 231|7“

The amount of unpaid dividend is deposited in Prime Bank,IBB Dilkusha STD A/C-3108315011216

20.00 Provision for Taxes:
Details are as under

Particulars

The above balance is made up as follows:

Provision for Accounting Year (2003-2004) - 40,961
Provision for Accounting Year (2007-2008) - 199.502
Provision for Accounting Year (2007-2008) (Interest) - 76840
Provision for Accounting Year (2008-2009) - 1.219.625
Provision for Accounting Year (2008-2009) (Interest) - 182,944
Provision for Accounting Year (2009-2010) - 5,000
Provision for Accounting Year (2013-2014) 800,176 800,176
Provision for Accounting Year (2014-2015) 5.792.437 5.792.437
Provision for Accounting Year (2015-2014) 1,904,846 6,353096
Provision for Accounting Year (2016-2017) 7.644,358 7.644 358
Provision for Accounting Year (2018-2019) 1,469,606 1,469,606
Provision for Accounting Year (2019-2020) 4,459,781 4,459.78)
Provision for Accounting Year (2020-2021) 9.080.670 9.080.670
Provision for Accounting Year (2021-2022) 9.032,442 9,032,442
Balance of unadjusted deposited advance amount by party 15,968 15968
Provision for Accounting year (2022-2023) 7,356,364 13,060,688
Provision for Accounting year (2023-2024) 72,711,879 -
Sub Total 120,268,527 59,434,094
Add: Adjustment during the year (2012-2013) - (5.687.008)
Less : Adjustment during the year (2017-2018) - (17.316)
Total —20268.527 _____S3.729770

Provision for income taxes accounting year 2003-2004, 2007-2008, 2007-2008(interest), 2008-2009, 2008-
2009 (interest), 2009-2010 total amounting to taka 17.24,872 adjusted during the year.

21.00 Provisions for Other Liabilities and Charges:
Details are as under

Particulars

Salary & wages clearing account (Note-21.01) 2,428,472 3,704,077
Provision for other expenses (Note-21.02) 5.,093.931 12,254,308
Provision for doubtful asset (Note-21.03) - 4,027.470
Total 7.522‘403 1 9"35&

21.01 Salary and Wages Clearing Account:

Details are as under

Particulars

Salary of Staff & Officers :

For Head office 554,661 348244
For Factory 435,785 968,320
wages 1.438.026 2.387.513
Total 2.428.472 3,704,077
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y Amount in Taka
30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023

21.02 Provisions for Other Expenses:
The above balance is made up as follows:

Particulars
MD'S Remuneration 141,000 135,000
Honorarium of Chairman 243,000 -
Board Advisor Honorarium 263,333 -
Audit Fee 200,000 200,000
AGM Expenses 47,068 75,004
Annual Subscription of BTMA for Membership - 48,160
CDBL (annual fee) 212.000 106,000
CDBL [bonus share transfer fee) 50.765 50.765
Gas Bill 1,428,099 8,545,239
Head office electric Bill 19,580 92.520
Head Office Internet Bill - 8,304
Legal Fee and Expenses 190,000 1,749,727
Mill Electricity Bill 1,841,630 1,241,389
Mill Telephone Bill - -
Mill Internet Bill 2,400 2,400
Mill Dish Line Bill - 800
Petrol for Vehicle 425,056 -
Petrol for Vehicle (Car No-0953) - 52,000
VAT on Audit Fee 30.000 30,000
Total 5,093,931 12,254,308
21.03 Provision for doubfful asset:
Details as under
Provision for debtors (as per last) - 498,379
Provision for stores in transit (as per last) - 3.529.091
Total : 4,027,470

A Provision was made in the year 2015-2016 amounting Tk.4,027,470/- against store in transit for
1k.3,529.091/- and other receivable Tk.498,379/- Total Tk.4,027,470/-. The amount of store in transit
and other receivable total Tk, 4,527,470/- has been written of during the year Total Tk. 500,000/-
has been charged to profit or loss account during the year

22.00 Bank Overdraft:
Particulars Notes
Agrani Bank - Cash Credit

! 7,032,249 37,032,249
(Hypothecation) - A/C-60/099 2201 37.032

Agrani Bank - Cash Credit (Pledge) - 18.260.169 NS 2 &P

A/C-07/08 22.02 (18.260.169) (18.260,169)
Total Cash Credit / Bank Overdraft 18,772,080 18,772,080

_ e

Agrani Bank Ltd. Ishurdi Branch, Pabna in its bank account statement has shown the following
balances as on  30. 06. 2011. Thereafter company has not received neither any bank statement
nor any bank advice in this respect.

Bank balance position of these short term loans as per Bank Statement as on 30th. June 2012

was as follows:

Amount in Taka

30 June 2012 _
Particulars -
Balance of CC-(Hypo) 53,455,913
Balance of CC-(Pledge) -
Total 53,455,913
Excess shown by the bank
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22.01 No provision had been made by the company for the exces$ amount claimed above by the
bank as per Bank Statement.

22.02 s is to disclose here that Agrani bank Lid, Ishardi Branch, Pabna filed the Case no. 89/13

dated 28-11- 2013 against Alhgj Textile Mills Ltd. together with its Chairman and Directors as
defaulter for payment of interest on above CC (Hypo) total due of Tk 77.674,358.80 as on
20.11.2013 plus interest upto the date of payment to be received.

22.03 Company feels that its claim referred under note No. 14.01 is more than sufficient to cover its
bank overdraft and long term loan liabilities if any arise under the judgment.

23.00 Worker's Profit Participation Fund: Amount in Taka
The balance is made up as follows: 30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023
Particulars
Opening balance 60,628 2,165,050
Add.Provision for the year 15,012,987 -

Add.Cheque issued 1o Banglodesh sramik kallayan foundation but
not collected

Less:Transferred to respective fund - (2.104,422)
Closing Balance 15,073,615 60,628

24.00 Net Asset Value Per Share (NAVPS):
The NAVPS is made up as follows:

Particulars

Total Assets & Properties Value 827.853,729 946,086,782
Less Total Liabilities 414,990,275 757.747.211
Total Net Assets 412,863,454 188,339,571
Total number of Share 22,298,549 22,298,549
Net Assets Value Per Share (NAVPS) 18.52 8.45

The company received interest from Agrani Bank PLC. which was showen previousiey as liability
(note:14.01) now accounted for as Interest Income for this reason the Liabilities decreased
significantly resulting into rise of Net Asset Value Per Share (NAVPS)
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Tumover (Amount) :
Item wise details are as under 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Amount in Amount in

Particulars Qty(Kg) Taka Qty(Kg) Toka
Carded Spun Yarn 771,571 303,600.625 682,396 308,326,139
Open-End Yarn 49,488 5.841.797 75.978 10,324,130
Total 821,059 309,442 422 758,374 318,650,269
Turnover in quantity (Kg) : 2023-2024

Production type Opening Production Closing Stock Loss/Damage s‘::: 3::'9

(a) _(b) (c) (d) (a+b-c-d)

Carded Spun Yo 477,732 730,704 436,865 - 771.57
Open-End Yorn 27.670 43,002 21,183 - 49,488
Total 505,401 773,706 458.048 - 821,059
Turnover in quantity (Kg) : 2022-2023

Production type o Sales duing

pening Production Closing Stock Loss/Damage the yeor
(a) (b) (c) (d) (a+b-c-d)

Carded Spun Yorn 161,980 998,147 477,732 - 682,396
Open-End Yorn 30.301 73,347 27,670 - 75,978
Total 192,281 1,071,494 505.401 - 758,374
Cost of Sales : Amount in Taka

Details of Cost of Sales are as under: 30 June 2024 | 30 June 2023
Particulars

Opening work-in-process 972,991 4,752,027
Raw Materials Consumption 5.01 214,156,998 330,124,050

215,129,989 334,876,077

Waste cotton consumption

[-) Closing Work-in-Process (272.633) (972.991)
(-) Wastage Recoverable [1.024.054) [1.861.445)
Total Consumption (a) 213,833,302 332,041,621
Factory Wages and Allowances 26.01 29.817,786 33.133.321
Factory Salary and Allowances 26.02 9.135,361 8,199,441
Store and Spares 26.03 7.260.639 14,942,337
Other Factory Overheod 2604 67.083.096 73.348812
Total cost (b) 113,296,882 129,623,931
COST OF PRODUCTION (a+b) 327,130,184 461,665,552
Opening Stock of Finished Goods 224,243,757 67,716,572
Closing Stock of Finished Goods (191.919.188)  (224,243,757)
Total Cost of Sales 359,454,753 305,138,367
Factory Wages and Allowances:

Details are as under

Particulars

Wages and allowances 28,192,970 30,937,485
Bonus 1,624816 2.195.836
Total 29,817,786 33,133,321
Factory Salary and Allowances:

Details are as under

Particulars

Salary and allowances 8,410,492 7,467,042
Bonus 724,849 732,419
Total 9,135,361 8,199.461
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26,03 Stores and Spares:

Details are as under
Particulars
Spare Ports 2,072,995 6,349,624
Packing Materials 4,603,633 6,744,332
Lubricants 233,674 322814
Electrical Materials 291,708 954,571
Building Maintenance Materials 6,248 151,380
Other Maintenance Materials 52,381 419616
Total 72_60‘63’ u,m,su
26.04 Other Factory Overhead: Amount in Taka
Details are as under 30 June 2024 | 30 June 2023
Particulars
Depreciation 4,421,652 9,874,839
Depreciation on re-valuation.of Fixed Assets 533,312 738,711
Electricity and Power 13,846,374 17,913,185
Gas Bill 45,026,263 39,935,670
Labour bill 207,570 107,701
Insurance Premium 578,115 2,486,277
Postage & Telephone 47,628 9.106
Printing ond Stationery 162,517 72,679
Internet Expenses 28,800 28,800
Rent.Rate and Taxes - Factory 180.000 180,000
Repairs and Maintenance of Electric Equipment 20.595 23,054
Repairs and Maintenance of Building 263,765 60,000
Repairs and Maintenance of Factory Generator - 30,000
Repairs and Maintenance of Gas Line - 98,300
Repairs and Maintenance of Machinery 1,766,505 1,790,490
Total 67,083,096 7&3‘%8]2
27.00 Administrative Expenses:
Details are as under
Particulars
Accounts audit fee 200,000 200,000
Advertisement Expenses 120,402 113,465
Annual Fee for CDBL 106,000 106,000
Annual General Meeting expenses - 141,445
Annual Subscription 444,136 198,504
Audit Committee Meeting fee 33,000 275.000
Audit Fee for Complionce Certification - 46,000
Bank Charges and Excise Duty 491,617 610,910
Board Meeting Fee 331,000 1.298.000
Bonus 1,068,188 393,806
Car Parking Expenses 51,400 42,425
Chairman’s Honorarium 1,163,960 540,000
Board Advisor Honoraium 393,333 -
Compliance Exp. - 358,000
Conveyance - 153,588
Corporate Social Responsibility Exp. 114,840 183.010
Courier Bil 10,034 38.924
Depreciation 290,099 473,422
Dish Line Communication Exp. 10,000 10,400
Electricity ond Power 202,584 102,064
Garoge Rent 84,000 -
Information Technology Service - 63,000
Internet Expenses 59,964 80,849
Leave Pay 99.749 41,564
Legal Fees and Expenses 4,056,850 3,314,300
Licence Renewal Fees 840,167 151,799
MD's Remuneration 3,300,000 1,800,000
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Repair & Maint of office Equipment 127110 85,660
Miscellaneous Expenses 57.660 45,657
Mobile bill 168,597 73,135
NRC Meeting Fee 33,000 55,000
Office Entertainment 435,050 356,084
Office Maint. - 74,779
Other Servicing (Office equipment) 125911 128,500
Petrol for Cor 2,228,246 1,019,584
Printing and Stationery 134,557 236,026
Purchase Committee Meeting Fee - 55.000
Rent,Rates and Taxes 2,628,593 1,054,800
Repairs of Vehicals 160,711 104,060
Salary and cllowances 6,960,210 4,379,774
Service Charge of Head Office - 226,800
Telephone 18,015 79.664
Training expense 20.388 -
Travelling and Conveyances 287.479 183.017
Uniform 6,500 8.000
VAT Expenses 870,954 554,570
Water and Gas Supplies Expenses - 97.200
Website Expenses - 94,600
Head office security salary 1.365.819 -
Write off expenses 27.01 500,000 -
Total 29,600,123 19,648,389
27.01 Write off expenses
Trade & Other Receivables: 998,379 -
Provision for debtors (as per last) 498,379 -
Total 500,000 -
28.00 Selling and Distribution Expenses: Amount in Taka
Details are as under 30 June 2024 | 30 June 2023
Particulars
Salary and allowances 1,114,020 762,516
Bonus 63,780 57.520
Sales Promotion Expenses 546,048 -
Other expenses 5,725 -
Total 1,729,573 820,036
29.00 Interest Income:
Details as under
Particulars
Interest on STD A/C 2,301,706 1,601,461
Interest on FDR 28,263,329 29.175.105
Sub-Total 30,565,035 30,776,566
Interest on FOR (Agrani Bank PLC) 29.00 395,447,027 -
Total e 826,012062 30,776,566
29.01 Interest on FDR (Agrani Bank PLC)
Total Received Amount 439,516,459 -
Less: Principal Amount 20.900.000 -
418,616,459 -
Less : Interest accounted for in the year 2001-2002 8,552,093 -
Less : Interest accounted for in the year 2008-2009 21,309.000 -
388,755,366 -
AGd : Advance Income Tax deducted (02-02-14 & 25-02-14) 6,691,661 -
%
30.00 Otherincome:
Details are as under
Waste cotton and scrape sale - 9.000
Tender Schedule sale 12,900 -
Insurance claim received - 305.800
Total 12,900 314800
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31.00 Income Tax Expense:
Calculation are as under
Particulars
Operating Income:
Total Loss (111,752,235) (37.366.731)
WPPF 15,012,987 -
Income after WPPF (96.739,248) (37.366,731)
Tax on operating income @ 15% (A) . .
Interest Income 30,565,035 30,776.566
Total Non-Operating Income: 30,565,035 30,776,564
Tax on interest income® 22,.50% (8) 6,877,133 6,924,727
Interest Income 395,447,027 -
Tax on interest income® 22.50% 88,975,581
Previous year tax adjustment (2013-2014) (23,420,832)
() 65,554,749
Waste cofton and scrape sale - 9.000
Insurance claim received - 305,800
Total Other Income - 314,800
Tax on other income® 22.5% . 70,830
Income from Investment in Shares (Dividend) 1,000,000 1,250,000
Tax on Dividend Income @ 20% (D) 200,000 250,000
Tax on depreciation of Revaluation (E) 79.997 110,807
72,711,879 7,356,364
Add: Short/Under provision (FY:2012-2013) - 5,687,008
Add : Short/Under provision (FY:2017-2018) - 17.316
Less :Adjustment for the year 2013-14 - -
Curmrent Tax Expense 72,711,879 13,060,688
Adjustment for current tax of prior periods 3,444,553 -
Income tax expense et 8156432 13,060,688
Tax has been provided applying the tax rates as per prevaiing income tax law and rules.,
32.00 Basic Earning Per Share (EPS) - Disclosure Under IAS 33 "Eaming Per Share™
The computation of EPS is given below:
Particulars
tEcx;'\ing attributable to the Ordinary Shareholders [Net Profit/(Loss) after 224,523,883 (17.331,351)
QX
Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year 22,298,549 22,298,549
Basic EPS 10.07 (0.78)
The company received interest from Agrani Bank PLC. which was showen previousley os liability (note:14.01)
now accounted for as Interest Income for this reason profitability of the company increased resulting
Increasing Earning Per Share.
33.00 Significant Deviation
During the year the Administrative expenses significantly increased due 1o the internal dispute of board
members. The dispute of board members resolved on 13th February, 2024 by signing a MOU.
3400 Reconciliation of net profit with cash flows from operating activities.
Parficulars
Net Profit 224,523.883 (17.331,351)
Add: Depreciation 5,245,063 11,086,972
Add: Increase of curent liability (except Loan) (372.746,569) 8,810,042
Add: Increase of Non-current liability 30,410,208 30,410,208
Less: Non operating income (31,577.935) (32,341.366)
Less : Increase of Cumrent Assets (except investiment) 87,028,620 (71,949.840)
Less : Deferred Tax (420.575) (754,702)

Net cash from operating activities
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35.00 Cailculation of net operating cash flow Per Share:

Net cash from operating activities
Total number of shares
Net operating cash flow per share

FAMES & R

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(57.537.305) (72.070.057)
22.298.549 22.298.549
(2.58) (3.23)

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures Under IAS 32 “Financial Instruments Presentafion™

Set out below is a year-end balance of carmrying cmounts (book value) of all financicl assets & habilfies

(financial instruments):

Interest Bearing
M Non Interest
Particulars "";:. Maturity ofter | oo e Total Toka
== One year
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - - - =
Investment in FDR 392.093.366 - - 392.093.366
Cash & Cash Equivalents - - 84,452,446 84,492,446
Total Financial Assets 392,093,366 - 84,492 446 476,585812
Financial Lgbilifies
Advance against Sales - - 3.802.147 3.802.147
Security and Other Deposits - - 19.822 19822
Other Current Liabilities - 9.326.756 9.326.756
Unpaid Dividend 231,756 101,221
Provision for Taxes - 120,248,527 120,268,527
Worker's Profit Participation Fund - 15,073,615 15073.615
Bank Overdraft 18.772.080 - - 18.772.080
Long Term Bank Loan - 236,287.126 236.287.126
Total Financial Liabilities 18,772,080 - 385,009,749 403,651,293
Net Financial Assets/(Liabilities): 373,321,286 - (300.517.303) J2934.519
Carrying Amounts (Book Value)

The basis of carmying amounts have been stated in accounting policies (Note-2)

Fair Valve

Management believe that the fair value of all financial assets and licbilifies cpproximate their camying voluve.

Market Value

The market! value of all financial instruments are not available as these are not froded on organized markets

in standardized form.
Interest Rate Risk Exposure

Company's borrowings are subject to market rate fluctugations which ore reviewed with lenders on on

ongoing basis.
Concentration on Credit Risk

The company's management believe that there was no significant concentrafion of credit risk in rode

debtors.
Foreign Curmrency Risk

The company is subject to foreign currency fluctuctions as the local curency (Taka) varies with US Dollors

and other foreign curencies.

?
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37.00 Related party disclosure

FAMES & R

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

The delails of related party fransactions during the year along with the relationship is illustrated below in

accordance of |AS-24:

Particulars 30 June 2024 | 30 June 2023
Name of the party Relationship with the Nature acth Transacted Transacted
com%%uy of fran i amount Tk. amount Tk,
Managin: ector &
Md . Mizanur Rahman gEO Remuneration 2,100,000 1,500,000
Md. Bakhtiar Rahman Monogingﬁl();ec'or & Remuneration 1,200,000 300,000
Md. Bakhtiar Rahman Chairman Honorarium 300,000
A M M Nasir Uddin Chairman Honorarium 341,379
Syed Tariquzzaman Chairman Honorarium 522,581
Md. Shafiqul Islam EX. Chairman Honorarium - 180,000
Mr. Khondoker Kamal
Uzaman Chairman Honorarium - 340,000
Loan to Alhaj jute
mills 1. (AJML) Sister concem Loan E 1,151,728
Sub-Total 4,463,960 3,491,728
38.00 Disclosure of Managerial Remuneration
The total amount of remuneration paid to the top six salaried officers of the company in the accounting
year is as follows:
SL No Name Designation 30 June 2024 | 30 June 2023
Company Secretary
| Md.Selim Parvez L.L.B.FCS Till 28th Fe ry. 2024 1,120,000 800,000
Company Secretary (Acting) i
2 Md. Shuva Roy From 01 April 2024 240,000
3 Md.Shamsul Huda DGM [Admin, Accounts & Law Affairs) 780,000 -
4 Md.AKM Azharul Islam DGM(Admin) - 706,300
5 Md.Akhtaruzzaman | DGM (Mechanical & Production) 1,517,340 1,471,360
Manager
é Mr. Shuva Ray Til 30 March 2024 520,000 373,333
7 Md.Jalal Uddin CFO-Acting 584,430 508,200
8 Md.Khalilur Rahman | Head of Internal Audit-Acting 540,000 420,000
Sub-Total 5,301,770 4,279,193
39.00 Plant Installed Capacity and Capacity Utilization
Figure in MT
Particulars Capacity of Production Achlevement
2023-2024 2022-2023 2023-2024 2022-2023
Spinning (Ring Frame) 244388 244388 1.397.11 2,200.53
Rotor 96.62 96.62 2398 38.34
40.00 Capital Expenditure Commitment
There was no capital expenditure commitment as on June 30, 2024
41.00 Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets
41,01 Both contingent liability as well as contingent assets cre existing in relation to interest on unsettied Long Term

Loan, Bank Overdraft and Special fund Deposit with Agrani Bank Lid., Ishurdi Branch, Pabna, as stated
under Note No. 14 & 22 above.
Position of these liabilities/assets as per claims raised both by Agrani Bank Lid. and by the company.

=
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41.02

41.03

46.00

FAMES & R

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Contingent
Liabllities plus
Particulars interest
(Claimed by

the Bank) (Tk.)

1 Claim lodged by Agrani Bank Lid. for Long term loan 289,847,501
Less Long term loan liability acknowledged by company (139.123.633)
Sub-total 150,723,868

2 Claim lodged by Agrani Bank Lid. for Short term loan 77,674,359

Less Short term loan liability acknowledged by company (18,772.080)
Sub-total 58,902,279
Total Contingent Liabliity 209,626,147

The claimed amount as mentioned above had been fixed as on 20 November 2013, However the claimed
amount lodged by the bank as on balance sheet date may be enhanced by interest,

It is mentionable that there was another claim of the Company with Janata Insurance Company Lid.for
Tk.2,000,329 since 1998 which has been settled on receipt of payment as on 5-4-2017 and duly accounted
for.

Tax returns for the financial years 2013-14, 2014-15,2015-2016 and 2016-2017 have been submitted and as per
tax laow assessment suppose 1o be completed but the assessment order not yet received .As per previous
practice the tax as demanded by the tax authority is to some extent higher than the tax provision. Based on
such practice it may be assumed that there may remaine some scope of contingent liability.

A case is pending with the Honourable Judge Court filed by the company in the year 2014 no.05 dated
12.01.2014 against Agrani Bank Limited of amounting Tk. 4,375,567,140.83 for damage and compensation
bearing for not allowing to sale pledged yam and to use pledged raw cotton and other materials for
production. For this reason, the company incurred losses and subsequently filed case against the bank to
compensate for the damage and losses.

There was no bank guarantee issued by the company on behalf of their directors or the company itself
except bank loan.

a) No expenses were incurred or paid in foreign currencies.
b) No other income was eamed or received in foreign currencies except as stated above.

Commission, Brokerage or Discount against Sales
No commission, brokerage and discount was incurred or paid to the sales agent.

Events after Reporting Period:

Subsequent to the Statement of Financial Position date, the Board of Directors recommended in its meeting
held on 28.12.2025 for payment of 5% cash Dividend and 35% stock Dividend for distribution at the end of
the year 2024 which is subject to the approval of the shareholders ensuing 42nd Annual General
Meeting(AGM] of the company. The Financial Statement was approved by the Board of Directors of the
company in its Board Meeting held on 28.12.2025.

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il of the Companies Act, 1994 and
DSE's requirement under Annexure 10 of Schedule A-Para-18 of The Dhaka Stock Exchange (Listing)
Regulations, 2015

Compliances are shown in Annexure-1 & 2 herewith this report.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 28.12.2025 and were signed on its
behalf by:

Company Sm%ucﬂm) Mom% (Acting) Direc

Place: Dhaka
Date: January 01, 2026
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FAMES & R

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXURE-1
Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il of the Companies Act, 1994:
A. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para-3, Note 4 (i) and (ii)
Employees position of the company as at 30 June, 2024:
Officer & Staff Total
Salcay (Monihiy) Faclory | Head Office | " °™®" |employees
Aggregate remuneration for the year Tk. 36,000/- and 1 7 8
above. .
Aggregate remuneration for the year below Tk. 36,000/- 24 10 245 279
Total 25 17 245 287

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 3:

Compliance status of disclosure of
Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 3

3(i)(a)
3(i)(o) t

3(i)(c)

3(i)(d)(i)
3(i)(d){ii)

3(i)(e)

36)h

3(i)g)

3(i)(h)

3(i)()

3
3(i) (k)
30

3(i)(m)

3(i)(n) (i)

3(i)(n) (i)

The turnover Complied -Disclosed in Note No- 25
Commission paid to the selling agent Not Applicable
Brokerage and discount on sales, other than the usual
trade discount. Not Applicable
The value of the raw materials consumed, giving item  Complied -Disclosed in Note No-
wise breakup as possible. 501
The opening and closing stocks of goods produced. ggénphed "Disciosed in’ Note No-
In the case of trading companies, the purchase made .

s t
and the opening and closing stocks. Not applicable
In the case of companies rendering or supplying
services, the gross income derived from services Not Applicable

rendered or supplied.

Opening and closing stocks, purchases and sales and

consumption of raw materials with value and quantity Complied -Disclosed in Note No-
break-up for the company, which falls under one or 501

more categories i.e. manufacturing and/or trading.

In the case of other companies, the gross income
derived under different heads.

Work-in-progress, which have been completed at the
commencement and at the end of the accounting

Not Applicable

Complied- Disclosed in Note No-

5.02
period.
Provision for depreciation, renewals or diminution in Complied -Disclosed in Schedule
value of fixed assefts. No- 1-2
Interest on the debenture paid or payable to the Not Applicable

Managing Director, Managing Agent and Manager.
Charge of income tax and other taxatfion on profits. Complied -Disclosed in Note No- 31

Revised for repayment of share capital and
repayment of loans

Amount set aside or proposed to be set aside, to

reserve, but not including provisions made to meet

any specific liability, contingency or commitment, Not Applicable
know to exist at the date as at which the balance

sheet is made up.

Not Applicable

Amount withdrawn from above mentioned reserve Not Applicable
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Amount set aside to provisions made for meeting

3(i)(el(i) specific liabilities, contingencies of commitments.

Not Applicable
Amount withdrawn from above mentioned provisions,
as no longer required.
Expenditure incurred on each of the following items,
separately for each item: (i) Consumption of stores
and spare parts (i) Power and Fuel (iii) Rent (iv)
Repairs of Buildings (v) Repairs of Machinery (vi) (1)
Salaries, wages and bonous (2) Confribution to
provident and other funds (3) Worksmen and staff
welfare expenses to the extent not adjusted from any
previous provision or reserve.
B. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 4:
Payment/Perquisites fo Directors & Managers

Complied and Disclosed in Schedule 36.

C. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part I, Para 7:

Details of production capacity utilization:

3(i) (o) (ii) Not Applicable

Complied -Disclosed in Note From
26.01 to 26.04, 27, 28 and in Income
Statement

3(i)(p)

2023-2024
License Installed Actual
Particulars Capacity Capacity (In Productio ePoct
(In MT) MT) n (In MT)
Annual production capacity in Spinning (R/Frame) 2,282.28 2,44388 1.397.11 57.17%
MT (Average 32/1 count) Rotor 258.19 96.62 23.98 2482%
2022-2023
License Installed Actual
Particulars Capacity Capachy (In Productio ﬁ;:“"'"
(In MT) MT) n (In MT)
Annual production capacity in SPinning (R/frame) 2,282.28 2,44388 2,200.53 90.04%
MT (Average 32/1 count) Rotor 258.19 96.62 3834 39.68%

D. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 8 (C) :
Raw materials, spare parts, packing materials and capital machinery:

% of
hems 1o (""D‘,’)""” Consumption (8oT)  €OMSumPIi0
purchase

Raw materials 200,262,030 214,156,998 106.94%
Spare parts 3.560,205 2,657,006 74.63%
Packing materia 3,474,068 4,603,633 132.51%

Total 207,296,303 221,417,637
Value of export:
Particulars In foreign currencies (US$) In BOT N%' OPP“CO*::: Or: ':‘0
Export NIL NIL ‘;’;‘g’nf’";d O:WO

Total - = comodities.

i) The company has not incurred any expenditure in foreign curencies for the period from 01 July, 2023 to
30 June, 2024 on account of royalty, know-how, professional fees, consultancy fees and interest;

ii) The company has not eamed any foreign exchanges for royalty, know-how, professional fees,
consultancy fees and interest;

ili) The Company has not remitted any foreign currencies on account of dividend.
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Annexure-2

Disclosure as per DSE's requirement of Annexure-10 of Schedule-A, Para-18

Ratio Analysis

2019-2020 | 2020-2021 | 2021-2022 | 2022-2023| 2023-2024
A) |lquidity/Solvency Ratios:
1) |Current ratio 1.46:1 1.49:1 1.60:1 1.62:1 4411
2) |Quick ratio 1.10:1 1.32:1 1.22:1 1.13.1 3.18:1
3) |Times Interest Eamed Ratio NA NA NA NA NA
4) |Debt to Equity Ratio 3.61:1 3.54:1 3.39:1 7.23 1.01
5) |Bad debt Ratio NA NA NA NA NA
B) |Operating Ratios:
1) RA;.;:;OUMS receivable Turnover NA NA NA NA NA
2) |Inventory Turnover Ratio 0.51 1.14:1 211 1.43 1.50
3) |Asset Turn over Ratio 0.28 0.45 0.89 0.89 0.47
C) |Profitability Ratios:
1) |Gross Margin Ratio (30.45)% (5.63)% 12.13% 4.24 (16.16)
2) |Operating Income Ratio (52.45%) (16.54)% 7.45% -2.18 (26.29)
3) |NetIncome Ratio (22.06%) 3.78% 5.77% -5.44 72.56
4) |Return on Assets Ratio (2.38%) 0.66% 2.18% -1.83 27.12
5) |Return on Equity Ratio (10.96% 3.00% 9.54% 9.2 54.38
6) 2:)%?;’;:2"”9 cashflowtoNet | ) g sag) | 1434.44% | (40301)% | 41584 (25.63)
7) |Earning per Share -0.93 0.26 0.91 (0.78) 10.07
D) |Stockholder Ratios:
1) |Price/Eamnings (P/E) Ratio -84.48 166.21 131.36 (220.90) 14.87
2) |Dividend yield Ratio - - - = =
3) |Dividend Payout Ratio - - - - -

\
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Alhaj Textile Mills Limited
Dividend Distribution Policy

Background and applicability
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) requires the listed companies to disclose Dividend
Distribution Policy.

This document, adopted by the Board of Directors of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited, lays down the Dividend
Distribution Policy ("the Policy") of the Company.
The Policy is subject to review as and when considered appropriate by the Board.

Dividend Distribution Philosophy

The Company believes in long term value creation for its shareholders while maintaining the desired liquidity
and leverage ratios and protecting the interest of all the stakeholders including customers, debtors, suppliers,
employees and the Government. Accordingly, the focus will continue to be on sustainable returns in terms of
dividend, in consonance with the dynamics of business environment.

Dividend
Dividend represents the profit of the Company, which is distributed to shareholders in proportion to the amount
paid-up on shares they hold. Dividend includes Interim Dividend.

Circumstances under which shareholders can expect Dividend

The Board will assess the Company's financial requirements, including its growth opportunities and other
pertinent factors for the purpose of considering dividend. The dividend for any financial year shall ordinarily
be paid out of the Company profits for that year in terms of the regulatory provisions. If circumstances require,
the Board may also declare dividend out of accumulated profits of any previous financial year(s) in accordance
with regulatory provisions, as applicable.

Interim and Final Dividend
The Board may declare one or more Interim Dividends and recommend Final Dividend for the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Financial parameters and other internal and external factors to be considered for declaration of

dividend

e Distributable surplus available as per the Companies Act, Listing Regulations and other applicable
regulations and directives.

e The Company's liquidity position and future cash flow needs.

e Track record of Dividends distributed by the Company.

e Pay-out ratios of comparable companies.

e Prevailing taxation policy and legal requirements with respect to Dividend distribution

e (Capital expenditure requirements.

e Stipulations/ Covenants of loan agreements, if any.

e Macro-economic and business conditions in general.

e Any other relevant factor that the Board may deem fit to consider.

Utilization of retained earnings

Subject to applicable Regulations, the Company's retained earnings may be applied for:

e Organic growth needs including working capital, capital expenditure, repayment of debt, etc.
e Inorganic growth needs such as acquisition of businesses, establishment of joint ventures, etc.
e Buyback of shares subject to applicable limits.
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e Payment of Dividend in future years.
e Issue of Bonus shares.
e Any other permissible purpose.

Circumstances under which the shareholders may not expect dividend

In line with the Dividend Distribution Philosophy, there may be certain circumstances under which the

shareholders may not expect dividend, including:

e The Company has sufficient revenues to generate significantly higher returns on surplus than what a
common shareholder can generate himself.

e In case of utilization of retained earnings as mentioned in this Policy.

e The Company has incurred losses or there is inadequacy of profits.

Modification of the Policy
The Board may modify this policy from time to time at its discretion or in line with any amendment made in
the Act or applicable Regulations.

Disclaimer
This document does not solicit investments in the Company's securities, nor is it an assurance of guaranteed
returns (in any form), for investments in the Company's shares.
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@ Alhaj Textile Mills Limited

66, Dilkusha C/A (4™ Floor), Dhaka-1000

PROXY FORM

as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 42 Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Saturday, 07" February, 2026 at 11:00 a.m. under Hybrid (Physical & Digital) Platform at
Dhaka Club, Sinha Lounge and at any adjournment thereof.

Name of Name of

SharenOIdEr..........cciire s PIOXY ..ot e
No. of Shares Signature of

NEIG. ... PrOXY oo
FONONO. s Date....oeee e,

Revenue Stamp
Taka 20.00

BoaCNo. | | | | | [ [ | | | | I I [ [ [ |

Signature of Shareholder...........ccoovviieeiiciice e Celliuriiicee e,

Signature Verified

Authorized signatory

Note:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote
in his/herbehalf. The Proxy Form, duly stamped must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least
48 hours before the meeting.
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